
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Workshop & Meeting   
April 23, 2018 

Agenda 
 

                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  Workshop 

A. Senior Center Parking – Michael Chammings (15 minutes) 
B. Citizens Advisory Committee – Yvette Bouttenot (30 minutes) 
C. Fire Department Overtime and EMS Working Group Report – Bob Chase (30 minutes) 

 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Walker 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items  
 

1. Order 36-04232018* 
Appointing Election Clerks for May 1, 2018 to May 1, 2020. 
 

II.          Minutes 

• April 2, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 

• April 10, 2018 Special Council Meeting 

 
III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions 

• Introduction of Auburn’s new Fire Chief, Robert Chase 

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda.   

                     
V.          Unfinished Business - None 
  
VI.      New Business  

 
1. Public Hearing – 2018 CDBG Action Plan 
 
2. Order 37-04232018 

Appointing Jason Sirois as a full member to the Board of Assessment Review with a term 
expiration of 10/01/2019 (new appointment). 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
3. Order 38-04232018 

Appointing Tim Griffin to the Citizens Advisory Committee with a term expiration of 
6/30/2019 (new appointment). 
 

4. Order 39-04232018 
Re-appointing Tizz E.H. Crowley and Rhyanna D. Larose to the Conservation Commission with 
term expirations of 6/1/2021. 

 
5. Order 40-04232018 

Appointing Rick M. Martel to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board with a term expiration 
of 10/01/2018 (new appointment). 

 
6. Order 41-04232018 

Appointing Stephen Martelli as an associate member to the Planning Board with a term 
expiration of 1/1/2020 (new appointment). 

 

VII. Reports 
a.  Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

d. Finance Director, Jill Eastman – March 2018 Monthly Finance Report 

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

IX. Executive Session 

• Economic Development (Schooner Estates TIF) pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 405 (6) (C). 
 
 X. Adjournment 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
City Council Workshop Date: April 23rd, 2018  
    
Author:  Michael Chammings, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 
Subject:  Senior Center Parking  

 
Information:  This project would add approximately eight new parking spots and a handicap accessible 
walkway to the Senior Center and the Hasty Building. The green space would be reconfigured, and the dying 
trees would be removed; new trees could be planted. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City Budgetary Impacts: None; this would be a Federally funded project. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Staff supports this parking/walkway project.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: 
 
The parking was discussed during the 2016 CIP funding of the Senior Center. 

 
 

City Manager Comments:   
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:   
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Attachment(s): 
 
Photograph of proposed project site 
Conceptual drawings and estimated costs will be available Monday night. 





 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 23, 2018   
 
Author:  Yvette Bouttenot 
 

Subject:  FFY2018 Draft Annual Action Plan – Community Development Block Grant and HOME Budget 
   Discussion with Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) 
 

Information:  The Mayor and the City Council have invited the members of the CAC to this workshop to discuss 
the proposed 2018-2019 CDBG and HOME budgets. 
 
HUD has not yet announced the allocations for the 2018-2019 budget therefore what is presented is a budget 
using the HUD allocation from FFY2017. Congress has approved an increase to both CDBG and HOME funding, 
so it is expected that we will see an increase in our allocation for 2018.  The CAC agreed to increase public 
service agency funding up to the cap and staff proposes to increase funding to the Neighborhood Challenge 
Grant if additional funds are received.  This budget will implement the fourth year of strategies and outcomes 
of the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan.   
 
The proposed budget is $1,143,561 for Community Development Block Grant and $873,956 for HOME 
Investment Partnerships Program funds (Lewiston’s HOME budget is projected to be $531,456).  These 
amounts include the allocation based on 2017 levels, projected 2018 program income and previous year carry 
over funds.  The CAC has met on two occasions – January 31 and February 28 to discuss and make a 
recommendation on the 2018-2019 budget based on the goals and objectives outlined in the 5 Year 
Consolidated Plan.  This budget was presented to the City Council at the workshop of March 19.  The next 
steps include holding two public hearings, the first of which will be this evening during the City Council regular 
meeting.  The second will be held on May 7 after which the Council will be asked to adopt the budget and 
Action Plan.  Any changes that may be proposed to this draft budget must be done in a manner which allows 
for public comment prior to Council adoption.  The City must submit the Action Plan/Budget to HUD for 
approval. 
 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: Budget supports portions of Code Enforcement and Economic Development Deputy 
Director salaries formerly covered by the general fund. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: City Council comments on the draft 2018-2019 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  March 19th Workshop 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments: FFY2018 CDBG and HOME Draft Budget and Action Plan 



 
 

































 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    April 23, 2018 
 
Author:   Deputy Fire Chief Robert Chase 
 

Subject:   Overtime and EMS Working Group 
 
Information:   
 
The Overtime and EMS Review Working Group was established to review overtime expenditures in the Auburn Fire 
Department, gain an understanding of why overtime exists, and determine why it continually exceeds allocated funds 
authorized in the annual budget appropriation.  
 
The group gained an understanding of departmental staffing and structure as well as analyzing overtime drivers and 
triggers.   
 
Additionally, the group reviewed EMS expenses.  Information on the expenses contained within the EMS budget and an 
analysis of the revenue generated by EMS transport was presented. 
 
The findings of the group will be presented for discussion. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  
 
Any budget adjustments will be presented by the City Manager through the budget process. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  
 
Ongoing collaborative effort with a comprehensive approach to controlling overtime. 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  
 
Working Group Meetings:  March 14th, 21st, 28th  

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation.  
 

Signature:                  
 

Attachments: Summary 
 



Fire and EMS Working Group Summary 

The Overtime and EMS Review Working Group was established to review overtime expenditures in the 

Auburn Fire Department, gain an understanding of why overtime exists, and determine why it 

continually exceeds allocated funds authorized in the annual budget appropriation. 

The initial group meeting of March 14th focused on a presentation made by Chief Low, to educate the 

group on the Fire Department structure, staffing, and level of service.  A detailed breakdown of each 

category of overtime expenses was presented which included an explanation of the drivers and triggers 

for each overtime category. 

In general, 90% of overtime is generated by contractual benefits or requirements, such as vacation, sick 

leave, mandatory training, and minimum staffing requirements.  The data showed that the Fire Chief has 

discretionary control over less than 10% of the overtime expenses. 

The Auburn Fire Chief often finds himself in a quandary. If one were to strictly adhere to the funding 
allowed in the budget, then, under the current model, the Chief would either need to deliberately 
violate the CBA or close a station at least part time. In this scenario, either option sets up the fire staff, 
City, and the Fire Chief for potential litigation and what may be an unacceptable level of risk.  
 
Because these risks and potential outcomes are considered unacceptable and directly contradictory to 

other guiding documents and directives, the preceding course of action is not taken. As a result, the 

integrity and ability of the agency and, in particular, that of the Fire Chief, to self govern - are called into 

question. 

Two of the largest drivers for overtime were found to be filling staff positions for Firefighters on 

vacation and on sick leave.  The most recent hiring of three firefighters in the fall of 2017 has had a 

significantly positive impact on overtime for vacation coverage.  We will continue to monitor this savings 

and explore opportunities to broaden the approach to further reduce overtime.   

The conclusion reached from this analysis of overtime was that a collective and coordinated effort 

should be ongoing to work to address overtime concerns through the collective bargaining process and 

long-term organization changes.   Additionally, internal control policies should be reviewed.  A new data 

collection software is forthcoming which should provide the department with better information on 

overtime expenses and benefit usage.  In the future, this data should support a review of internal 

control policies and allow management to find trends in overtime costs and benefit usage. 

The committee also explored answers to the following question: 

“With the existing requirements on the organization and a history of actual expenditures far in excess of 

budgeted amounts, isn’t this, at least in part, a budgeting issue?”  In addition to implementing the 

measures noted above, the city manager will be making recommendations on adjusting some overtime 

budget items to bring the budget more in line with actual expenditures.  This will be done over the next 

two to three budget cycles.  



At the initial meeting, there were also questions generated regarding the department’s schedule and 

the schedule’s effects on overtime.  At the March 21st meeting, multiple scheduling systems were 

presented for discussion-  each of which has its unique benefits and disadvantages.  Because the 

department schedule is contractually defined, these options should be explored further during the 

collective bargaining process.   

EMS: 

The working group was also charged with specifically reviewing ambulance services to identify lingering 

questions regarding EMS services and EMS-related expenditures.  When the EMS transport system was 

established in 2014, the devised budget was created to include only expenses that were to be incurred 

because of the new mission of EMS transport.  This was done to quantify the impacts of EMS transport 

expenses against the revenue generated.  It was also done to clearly show that, if EMS transport was 

discontinued, only those expenses associated with it would go away along with the revenue.  The 

Finance Director confirmed that, throughout the existence of EMS transport, the revenues have and 

continue to exceed expenses.  In FY 18, EMS transport is projected to generate $500,000 in net revenue 

after expenses.  The working group determined that Auburn Fire is providing a superior service and with 

the revenue stream it produces, it should continue.  The working group recommends that the council 

consider a joint Fire/EMS budget in the future.  

 
Conclusion:   

Overtime has been a long-standing concern.   Guiding documents, such as the Collective Bargaining, 

along with the level of service expectations, make it difficult to identify an immediate action that will 

make an impact on overtime expenses.  The working group has provided recommendations for ongoing 

data collection and internal controls. Most importantly, the group has identified that further 

opportunities to address overtime expenses must be made through the collective efforts of 

management, the Firefighters Union (Local 797) and the council.  

 



OVERTIME AND EMS REVIEW 
WORKING GROUP

Purpose and Scope
The Overtime and EMS Review Working Group has been established to 
review overtime expenditures in the Auburn Fire Department, gain an 
understanding of why overtime exists, and determine why it continually 
exceeds allocated funds authorized in the annual budget appropriation. 



OVERTIME AND EMS REVIEW 
WORKING GROUP

Purpose and Scope
Additionally, the working group is charged with specifically reviewing 
ambulance services to identify lingering questions regarding EMS 
services and EMS-related expenditures. 



OVERTIME AND EMS
WORKING GROUP

Robert Hayes City Councilor
Andy Titus City Councilor
Robert Stone Citizen
Peter Crichton City Manager
Jill Eastman City Finance Director
Mike Scott President Local 797
Eric Poland Vice President Local 797
Geoff Low Fire Chief 
Robert Chase Deputy Fire Chief



Meeting March 14, 2018

Presentation by Chief Low:
• Review of Department Structure and Staffing
• Review of historical Overtime expenses
• Review of “Triggers & Drivers” for each Overtime 

Sub-category



Meeting March 14, 2018
• “Why have we continued to budget $20k when we consistently spend $80K.  Isn’t 

this, at least in part, a budgeting issue”

• What is the cost of Fire Department overtime without EMS?

• Want to feel comfortable that everything that is “EMS Transport” related is 
accounted for as an EMS expense.

• Largest overtime expenses are Vacation replacement and Short Term Sick Leave.  
What is being done to control these cost?

• Group would like to have an understanding of other fire department schedules and 
the impact of costs.



HISTORICAL OVERTIME DATA

OT BUDGET ITEM BUDGET (AVG)
FY14-FY17

SPENT (AVG)
FY14-FY17 OVER BUDGET (AVG)

Vacation $20,000 $108,684 $88,684 

LT Sick $20,000 $78,024 $58,024 

ST Sick $89,000 $160,602 $71,602 

OTHER $73,827 $180,449 $106,622

TOTAL $202,827 $527,759 $324,932



VACATION REPLACEMENT OVERTIME

Vacation Replacement
Description: 
Overtime wages paid to cover firefighters who are on vacation. Staffing must fall below 14 firefighters 
before funds in this line are used. 
Drivers: 
1. CBA Article X – Vacations, Section 2 – Vacation Selection
2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1)
Triggers: 
Use of vacation by Firefighters 
5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (YTD)
Budgeted $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000
Actual $80,145 $87,129 $120,844 $146,616 $79,547

$0.00

$20,000.00

$40,000.00

$60,000.00

$80,000.00

$100,000.00

$120,000.00

$140,000.00

$160,000.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Budgeted

Actual



THE EFFECT OF THE MOST RECENT HIRING (4 FFs)
ON OT EXPENSES

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

Total AFD OT Costs 

Total AFD OT Costs

Average Before: $15,232.49
*Average After: $5,515.36

**Average with Long Term Sick EEs: $9,781.86

•11/25/17 - Saving seen when new employee began
•2/10/18 -OT cost went back up (partially) due to 3 employees out on LT illness



Sick Replacement - ST
Description:
Overtime wages paid to cover firefighters who use 72 hours or less of sick leave - for one occurrence. 
Staffing must fall below 14 firefighters before funds in this line are used.
Drivers:
1. CBA Article XI – Sick Leave, Section 1 – Use of Sick Leave
2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1)
Triggers:
Use of sick leave (long term) by firefighters 
5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (YTD)
Budgeted $89,000 $89,000 $89,000 $89,000 $89,000
Actual $157,578 $161,537 $141,154 $182,139 $94,489

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

$180,000

$200,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Budgeted

Actual

(ST) SICK REPLACEMENT OVERTIME



5.00%

70.00%

21.67%

3.33%

AUBURN FIRE DEPARTMENT SHORT TERM
2017 SICK LEAVE USAGE

Zero Up to 5 days Up to 10 days More than 10 days

AFD sick time usage follows national public sector trends

We can continue to improve sick time management
• Collective bargaining process
• Data collection software



Meeting March 21, 2018

• Presentation of various Fire Department work 
schedules

• Review of EMS budget



EMERGENCY SERVICES 
SCHEDULING

24 X 7 COVERAGE REQUIRES 168 HOURS/WEEK

TYPICALLY 3 OR 4 PLATTON SYSTEMS
•4 PLATOONS = 168/4 = 42 HOURS/WEEK
•3 PLATOONS = 168/3 = 56 HOURS/WEEK

•Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) requires overtime to 
be paid when hours worked exceeds 212 hours in 28 
days (average of 53 hours/week)



42 HOUR SCHEDULE X 4 PLATOONS
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAYTHURSDAYFRIDAY SATURDAY

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 1 2 3

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAYTHURSDAYFRIDAY SATURDAY

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAYTHURSDAYFRIDAY SATURDAY

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 1 2 3 4 5

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

48hrs + 48 hrs+24 hrs + 48 hrs = 42 hr average week

•Paid for 42 hours every week
•O.T.  only if additional shift are worked



56 HOUR SCHEDULE X 3 PLATOONS
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAYTHURSDAYFRIDAY SATURDAY

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 1 2 3

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAYTHURSDAYFRIDAY SATURDAY

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAYTHURSDAYFRIDAY SATURDAY

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 1 2 3 4 5

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

72hrs + 48 hrs + 48 hrs = 56 hr Average 
week

•Paid for 56 hours every week
•Per FLSA:

•53 hrs Straight Time
•3 hrs Overtime



Scheduling Summary

• Schedule changes could be explored in the collective bargaining 
process.

• Options should be considered based on Total Payroll Expense, not just 
Overtime.

• Overtime in any scheduling system will occur when there is 
insufficient staffing to cover reasonable anticipated absences.



EMS BUDGET REVIEW
• THERE HAVE ALWAYS BEEN EMS EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE DEPARTMENT.

• UPON STARTING EMS TRANSPORTING, THE BUDGET WAS ESTABLISHED TO QUANTIFY 
ADDITIONAL COSTS INCURRED FOR TRANSPORTING.

• THE GROUP FOUND THAT THE EMS BUDGET IS INCLUSIVE OF EMS TRANSPORT 
EXPENSES.

• THE GROUP FOUND THAT EMS TRANSPORT RESULTS IN A NET REVENUE OF $500,000 
TO $600,000 ANNUALLY BASED ON CURRENT MINIMUM STAFFING.

• IF EMS TRANSPORT WAS DISCONTINUED, TAXES WOULD HAVE TO INCREASE TO 
OFFSET THE LOSS OF REVENUE.



Meeting March 28, 2018

• Consensus that EMS transport results in a positive 
cash flow for the City based on contractual 
requirements.

• Developed Recommendations



RECOMMENDATIONS
ONGOING COLLABORATIVE EFFORTS TO ADDRESS  
OVERTIME  EXPENSES

• Collective Bargaining Process
• Internal Procedure Review
• Data Collection



RECOMMENDATIONS

Incremental (3 to 5 year)  budget adjustments to align 
overtime budget with actual expenditures.

OT BUDGET ITEM BUDGET (AVG)
FY14-FY17

SPENT (AVG)
FY14-FY17

2019  PRELIMINARY DRAFT 
BUDGET

Vacation $20,000 $108,684 $20,000

LT Sick $20,000 $78,024 $50,000

ST Sick $89,000 $160,602 $130,000 



RECOMMENDATIONS
Explore combining Fire and EMS budget into a single 
department budget.



 
 
 
 
 
 

Overtime and EMS 
Workgroup  

 

Document Prepared by Geoffrey Low, Fire Chief 

3/13/2018 

 

 

 

  



2 
 

OVERTIME AND EMS WORKGROUP 

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE 
 

 

Purpose and Scope 

The Overtime and EMS Workgroup has been established to review overtime expenditures in the 

Auburn Fire Department, gain an understanding of why overtime exists, and determine why it 

continually exceeds allocated funds authorized in the annual budget appropriation.  

Additionally, the Workgroup is charged with specifically reviewing ambulance services to 

identify lingering questions regarding EMS services and EMS-related expenditures.  

At the conclusion of the work period, the Workgroup will report their findings to the Council for 

potential action.  

 

 

Workgroup Make Up 

 

The Overtime and EMS Workgroup is comprised of the following members: 

Robert Hayes  City Councilor 

Andy Titus   City Councilor 

Robert Stone   Citizen 

Peter Chrition  City Manager 

Jill Eastman   City Finance Director 

Mike Scott   Union Representative, Auburn Firefighters Local 797 

Geoff Low  Fire Chief  

 

Accountability 

The Overtime and EMS Review Workgroup is accountable to the Auburn City Council and the 

City of Auburn Mayor. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

Introduction 

Expenses associated with Auburn Fire Department overtime have been the focus of much discussion for 
more than two decades. Despite concerns and ire voiced about these expenditures, there has been little 
in the way of productive conversation or exploration as to why the situation continues unchecked. While 
attempts have been made to control overtime expenditures, to date, none have been truly successful.   

This document is a reference for the workgroup being established to examine overtime. Its purpose is to 
serve as a starting point for exploration of overtime use in the Auburn Fire Department.  

To a lesser degree the document also discusses ambulance services provided by Auburn Fire 
Department. This discussion is intended to help identify ongoing concerns and questions about the 
topic.  

Definitions 

Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) – A deal or bargain between the Auburn Fire Fighters Local 797 
and City Management, which is approved by the City Council, that addresses a wide range of concerns in 
the workplace. Examples of some of the many topics covered in CBAs include: employee wages, hours, 
benefits, time off, raises, promotions, and disciplinary issues.  

Engine (also known as a pumper) – A fire truck that carries its own supply of hose, water, and ground 
ladders. 

Ladder Truck – A fire truck that carries a large complement of ground ladders, salvage equipment, and 
other service tools. This truck typically has a large, top-mounted ladder of 75’ feet in length (or greater) 
to reach elevations not accessible by ground ladder. 

Long Term Sick Leave – Long term sick leave is defined by the Family Medical Leave Act as an absence of 
more than three shifts. Because firefighters work 24-hour periods, the use of sick leave that exceeds 72 
hours (for one occurrence) by a firefighter that is considered long-term.  

Military Leave – This is federally-required leave that must be approved for members serving in the 
active or reserve elements of the United States’ Armed Forces.   

Overtime Drivers – An activity or provision that is the root cause of why overtime costs occur.  

Overtime Triggers – An event that results in the Fire Department not meeting minimum standards 
established by a guiding document or other established standard. 

Q-Unit- Combination Engine/Ladder Truck. 

Rescue (also known as an ambulance) – A vehicle that is used to transport sick and injured individuals to 
the hospital. 

Short -Term Sick Leave – Defined as the use of sick leave that is 72 hours or less in duration for one 
occurrence. 

Staffing – The required number of firefighters on duty at any given time. Minimum staffing for the 
Auburn Fire Department, based on directives and guiding documents, is 14. 

Suppression Units – A general term for fire engines, quints, ladders, and rescues. 



4 
 

Background 
 
The Auburn Fire Department provides 24-hour response for various types of emergencies, including fire 
suppression, medical services, ambulance transportation, hazardous materials incidents, and specialized 
rescues. In addition to providing these emergency services, the Fire Department also participates in 
code enforcement, public education, fire prevention, and fire investigation. It is the mission of the 
Auburn Fire Department “to provide the community with the highest standards of service through 
prevention, training, education, suppression, and emergency medical services”. 
 

Administratively, the Fire Department is structured into five divisions that facilitate the department’s 
daily operations. The figure below outlines these five divisions and the responsibilities assigned to each. 

Administration Provides direction and administrative oversight for the department  

Operations 
Utilizes an all-hazards approach to address risk and actual 
emergencies in the city 

Fire Prevention Responsible for inspections, public education, response and risk data 

Emergency Medical Services  Provides direction and administrative oversight for EMS  

Emergency Management  Responsible for ensuring compliance with NIMS related activities 

 

As of February 15, 2018, the Auburn Fire Department operates out of three stations in the following 

configuration:  

Station Location Full Time Staffing 

Central Station  550 Minot Ave 1 Engine – 3 or 4 firefighters  
1 Rescue – 2 firefighters  
1 Battalion Chief 
This station also serves as administrative 
headquarters. The office of the Fire Chief, 
Deputy Fire Chief, EMS Director, and Fire 
Prevention Officer are located here.  

Center Street Station  651 Center Street 1 Qunit – 3 or4 firefighters 
1 Rescue –  2 firefighters 

South Main Street Station  180 South Main Street 1 Engine – 3 firefighters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

Staffing Model 

The Auburn Fire Department uses a top-to-bottom structure to manage its operations. This structure is 

broken out below: 

 

 

Two positions that are not included on the chart above are the EMS Director and the Fire Prevention 

Officer. While these positions have divisional authority, they do not have traditional direct reports. The 

EMS Director is a salaried (exempt) position that is considered part of the leadership team. The Fire 

Prevention Officer is an hourly (non-exempt) position that is part of the Auburn Firefighters Local 797 

bargaining unit.  

The Fire Department staffs all suppression units (including rescues) on a ‘constant’ basis. This means 

that, if a position is vacant for that shift (e.g., someone calls in sick or is on vacation), then another 

employee is called in to work overtime to fill that vacant shift. On days when the department is critically 

short-staffed and there are not enough employees available to fill vacant positions (even on voluntary 

overtime), the department has the option to compel (force) employees to work. When the situation 

arises that forcing employees to work is also not an option - some suppression units may be reduced to 

two-person staffing. 

While there is some variation, the Fire Prevention Officer and Fire and EMS Support Specialist work 37.5 

hours a week. Individuals working these shifts may incur some overtime; however, these types of shifts 

do not routinely provide emergency services and are, therefore, not filled on a ‘constant’ basis. If one of 

these employees is out for the day (e.g., on vacation or using sick leave), their shift goes unfilled and 

other administrative staff assumes their duties. As a result, these positions tend to generate significantly 

less overtime than the suppression positions. 

Fire Chief 

Deputy Fire Chief 

Battalion Chiefs 

Fire Captains 

Fire Lieutenants 

Fire Fighters  

Salary (Exempt) 

Hourly (Non-Exempt) 



6 
 

Firefighters work a 24-hour shift, followed by three days off. Firefighters are not permitted to work 

more than 48 continuous hours - limiting them to only be able to accept one shift immediately after a 

regular work period. 

Overtime 

The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) establishes minimum wage, overtime pay, recordkeeping, and 

employment standards affecting employees in the private sector and in Federal, State, and Local 

governments. Generally, employers are required to pay an overtime rate of not less than one and one-

half times the regular rate after 40 hours of work in a workweek. However, special rules apply to State 

and Local government employment involving fire protection. Public agency fire departments may 

establish a work period ranging from 7 to 28 days, in which overtime need only be paid after a specified 

number of hours in each work period. 

Section 7(k) of the FLSA specifies that an employee engaging in fire protection activities may work up to 

212 hours in a 28-day work period before receiving overtime pay. If the work period is fewer than 28 

days, then the same ratio of hours-to-days must still apply. The City of Auburn has established a work 

period of 28 days for Fire Department suppression personnel. Based on the Fire Department’s one day 

on, three days off (24/72) work schedule, suppression personnel are regularly scheduled to work fewer 

than the FLSA-allowed maximum of 212 non-overtime hours in a 28 day cycle.  

In accordance with the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of Auburn and the Auburn 

Firefighters Local 797, overtime is paid out for any work performed outside of the normal work schedule 

for firefighters. This means that, in addition to full or partial shifts, any additional training, committee 

work, or special detail work is paid at the overtime rate. 

Fire Chief’s Perspective on the Operational/Funding Mismatch 

A common misconception is that the Fire Chief has the ability to control all overtime and, that when 

funds run low, overtime spending should stop. While there are some occasions when the actions of the 

Fire Chief can directly cause overtime, that figure only accounts for roughly 10% of the total overtime 

expense. This “discretionary” overtime is typically used for up-staffing during storms, ensuring adequate 

coverage during fires or other long term incidents, leadership team meetings, and other occasions 

where off-duty staff must be utilized to ensure adequate management of fire department operations.  

Below are examples of organizational mandates, local and state, that govern the expectation and duties 

of the fire department and, in turn, drive staffing requirements.  

City Ordinance 

Sec. 20-22. - Chief. 

The chief of the fire department shall be the executive officer and shall be solely responsible for the 
supervision and maintenance of the department. He shall make such rules and regulations and issue 
such orders as are not inconsistent with statute laws, the Charter and city ordinances as may from time 
to time be necessary for the best interest of the department.  



7 
 

Sec. 20-29. - Interpretation of regulations. 

When there is doubt as to the meaning of any fire department rule or regulation, application shall be 
made to the chief for an interpretation of the rule or regulation.  

Sec. 20-31. - Emergency medical services. 

The fire department or its designee shall be responsible for providing emergency medical services.  

Maine State Statute 

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES 

Chapter 153: MUNICIPAL FIRE PROTECTION 

§3153. FIRE CHIEFS. 

2.  Duties.  The fire chief shall: 

A.  Direct and control all municipal and volunteer firefighters in the performance of firefighting 
operations within the municipality, except as provided in Titles 12 and 25;  

 
B.  Provide a training program for firefighters within the municipality in cooperation with appropriate 

governmental agencies; 

C.  Provide for the maintenance of all fire equipment owned by the municipality and buildings used 

by the municipal fire department.  

3.  Powers.  The fire chief may: 
 

B.  With the approval of the municipal officers, adopt administrative regulations relating to municipal 

fire protection, consistent with this chapter and municipal ordinances. 

Title 26: LABOR AND INDUSTRY 

Chapter 28: MINIMUM SAFETY STANDARDS FOR FIREFIGHTERS 

 
§2102. FIREFIGHTER TRAINING AND EDUCATION. 
 
1.  Training and education requirements.  Each fire department shall provide a training and education 

program that meets the fire department's needs and includes the following: 

A.  Training and education in accordance with Title 30-A, section 3154, subsection 2;  

B.  Training and education in the use of protective equipment required by this chapter;  

C.  Training and education by the fire chief or the fire chief's designee in accordance with National 
Fire Protection Association standards;  

D. Training and education to prevent occupational accidents, deaths, injuries and illnesses;  



8 
 

E.  Training and education for all firefighters commensurate with the duties that they are expected to 
perform prior to performing those duties; 

H.  Training and education in the safe handling and use of hazardous substances for firefighters  
required to handle the substances. Training and education must include the potential hazards  
involved and the required personal hygiene and protective measures; and  

 
I.   Training and education in the care, use, inspection, maintenance and limitations of the protective 

equipment assigned to firefighters for their use. 

Title 26: LABOR AND INDUSTRY 

Chapter 6: OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY RULES AND REGULATIONS BOARD 

§561-A. GENERAL DUTIES. 

1.  Employer duties.  An employer has the following duties: 

A.  An employer shall furnish to each employee, employment and a place of employment that are 
free from recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause death or serious physical harm 
to the employee.  

 
Comprehensive Plan  

 

Contained in Chapter 1, Section H, Community Development Policies, of the Comprehensive Plan, the 
City Manager is charged with “assuring that City services are provided equitably” (p.125). This charge is 
addressed in Objective H.1.2: Maintain and enhance the quality of life in Auburn’s neighborhoods. The 
Strategy to achieve this objective is Strategy H.1.2.a: Assure that city services such as police, fire, and 
public works are provided to neighborhoods on an equitable basis, and that problems impacting 
individual neighborhoods are addressed. 
 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  

 

There are several elements of the collective bargaining agreement that dictate when overtime must be 
used to meet contractual requirements: 
 
ARTICLE VII - Hours of Work and Overtime 
 

Section 1 - Hours of Work   
 
Firefighters' regular workweek shall consist of an average of forty-two (42) hours per week.  For the 
duration of this contract, the regular tour of duty (on-duty shift) shall consist of a twenty-four-hour 
continuous time period commencing at 7:00 a.m. and ending at 7:00 a.m. the following day.  Firefighters 
shall remain in active status performing work assignments between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 
p.m.; and from 6:00 a.m. to 6:59 a.m. - during on-duty shifts, except for ‘free time’ periods. The 
department will be organized under a four (4) battalion system. 
 



9 
 

A work cycle, for the duration of this contract, is defined as one twenty-four-hour tour of on-duty time 
(on-duty shift) followed by three consecutive twenty-four-hour time periods off beginning at 7:00 a.m. 
following the on-duty shift. 
 
ARTICLE X – Vacations 
 
Section 1 - Vacation Accrual 
 
For the purposes of this article, it is understood that years of service will mean continuous years of 
service. Probationary firefighters (members with fewer than twelve (12) months of service) will 
accumulate vacation hours at the rate of eight (8) hours per calendar month.  Probationary firefighters 
may not take vacation leave during their first twelve (12) months of service unless there are special 
circumstances which would warrant the Chief, or in his absence, the Deputy Fire Chief, authorizing a 
waiver of the restriction on vacation leave.  Requests for waivers and the administrative decision 
regarding the request shall be in written form.   
 
Section 2 - Vacation Selection 
 
Vacations shall be chosen by firefighters on the basis of total years of service in the department without 
regard for time served in a specific rank.  A maximum of two firefighters per battalion can be on 
vacation at the same time.   
 
Section 5 - Floating Holidays 
 
Each firefighter is entitled to choose and take off one floating holiday per calendar year. From 07:00 
hours on the Friday after vacation selection through 11/20, firefighters shall either pick or pass on 
selecting their floating holidays.  
 
If selecting a holiday after 11/20, no firefighter may choose a holiday on a day on which his/her battalion 
would thereby be reduced below the apparatus staffing level (because of prior scheduled vacations, 
existing extended sick leave, on-the-job injuries, or other cause known at the time notice is given).  
 
ARTICLE XI - Sick Leave 
 
Section 1 - Use of Sick Leave   
 
It is the expectation of the City of Auburn and I.A.F.F., Local 797 that firefighters will be available for 
duty.  However it is recognized that, from time to time, a firefighter will be absent due to illness.  
Firefighters, therefore, shall accrue sick leave at a rate of thirteen (13) hours for each calendar month of 
service to be used for the firefighter's personal illness or for a member of the firefighter's "immediate 
family".  For purposes of this article, "immediate family" is defined as a spouse, significant other, child, 
or parent. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIII – Leaves 
 
The Auburn Fire Department and the City of Auburn have a proprietary interest in ensuring the safety 
and security of its staff, citizens, and visitors. To that end, it is the goal of both stakeholders to limit the 



10 
 

amount of time that firefighters are away from their apparatus or stations. Evidence has proven that the 
earlier a sufficient number of trained responders arrive to manage an incident, regardless of nature, the 
faster the incident will be controlled - increasing the chances of a positive outcome.   
 
Section 1 - Funeral Leave 
 
Leave of absence without loss of pay and without loss of sick leave shall be granted to any firefighter for 
five (5) consecutive calendar days because of death of a spouse or child and three (3) consecutive 
calendar days because of a death in the immediate family, plus any actual travel time reasonably 
required to return from out-of-state.  Immediate family shall be defined to include mother, stepmother, 
father, stepfather, brother, stepbrother, sister, stepsister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, 
daughter-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, grandparents, spouse's grandparents, grandchildren and 
any other person living in the firefighter's household.   
 
ARTICLE XIV - Exchange of Shifts and Transfers 
 
Section 2 - Transfers, Permanent Positions, Bidding, EMT Assignments 
 
5.  EMT Assignment Procedures:   
 

(a)  The rescue crew shall consist of a State of Maine licensed paramedic and at least a State of Maine    
licensed EMS provider. 

(c)   Paramedics will be distributed as equally as possible between the battalion. 
 
6.  Paramedic Roster:  
 
The Fire Department shall have a minimum Paramedic roster level of sixteen (16).  Current Paramedics 
will be included as part of the roster.  The increase to 16 paramedics will be accomplished as new 
firefighters are hired.  Paramedics shall be required to maintain their EMS license while part of the 
minimum paramedic roster level. The most senior Paramedic will be removed from the Paramedic roster 
when his/her replacement has attained their Paramedic license.  On a case-by-case basis, a firefighter 
may request a temporary reduction in their EMS License due to personal reasons.  Any reduction will 
first be discussed by the Labor Management Committee.  
 
Paramedic Roster Rules:  
 

 Employees hired after January 1, 2015, shall obtain and continue to retain a paramedic license 
while part of the minimum Paramedic roster.  This includes complying with state-mandated, 
continuing-education requirements. Maintenance of such licensure level required by this article 
shall constitute a condition of employment and failure to maintain such required license shall be 
considered just cause for dismissal.  

 Employees hired before January 1, 2015, shall continue to retain a Paramedic license while part 
of the minimum Paramedic roster. This includes complying with state-mandated, continuing- 
education requirements. Any employee whose EMS license has lapsed or has been downgraded 
for failure to comply with continuing education requirements will forfeit their EMS pay and be 
reduced an amount equal to two (2) anniversary steps.  If and when the employee’s license is 
reinstated, the employee will return to full pay and status. 

 Paramedics may request to downgrade licensure under the following conditions: 



11 
 

 There are sufficient number of Paramedics with less seniority which will allow the 
reduction to occur without negatively impacting minimum, Paramedic-staffing levels; 

 The Paramedic has experienced a catastrophic event, not of his own doing, that would 
prohibit him/her from continuing to perform as a Paramedic safely, for example: an 
incident that results in post traumatic stress. 

 Either incident will require an administrative review followed by discussion with the 
Labor/Management Group. 

 
Actions against the Provider’s License: 
 

 Any employee whose EMS license is being investigated by MEMS shall notify the Chief or his 
designee immediately. 
 
 The employee shall maintain full pay and status pending the results of the MEMS 

investigation unless the State, Regional, and/or Department’s Medical Director prohibits 
the employee from working in EMS or limits the capacity in which an employee can provide 
EMS. 

 In cases where the employee is prohibited from working in EMS, or has limits on their 
capacity in which he/she can provide EMS as a result of an internal action, the employee 
will be paid in accordance with their ability to perform EMS. 

 Providers hired after January 1, 2015 that are on the Paramedic Roster who are 
downgraded as an action of MEMS from an investigation, regardless of duration, may be 
subject to termination. 

 
ARTICLE XV - Recall to Work 
 
Section 1 - Off-Duty  
 
Off-duty firefighters may be recalled to duty in the case of multiple alarms, major emergencies, or when 
staffing per apparatus is below the required level. The required minimum staffing level for each 
structural engine company is three (3); for the aerial company is three (3) and one Battalion Chief.  The 
parties agree that, in no event, will the City be required to assign more than three firefighters per 
apparatus as set forth above, plus the Battalion Chief. The Chief may increase the staffing requirements 
when conditions reasonably warrant his/her doing so. 
 
Staffing for other apparatus not listed above will be at the discretion of the Fire Chief or designee.   
 
Section 2 - Replacement Coverage Turns    
 
When staffing falls below requirements as set forth in Article XV, Section 1, replacements shall be 
obtained from the extra work list. 
 
 
Depicting Drivers versus Allocated Resources 
 
Translating the aforementioned ‘drivers’ into actual numbers that highlight the mismatch between 
expectations and resources allocated to meet those expectations, can be conceptually difficult. In order 
to provide statistics and visual aids to help with this, the following pages contain overtime data laid out 



12 
 

in a chart format. Each overtime account has its own chart identifying what the account is used for, 
drivers for the account, triggers that cause money to be spent from that account, a five-year financial 
comparison based on publically available data, and a line chart that depicts trends in account activity 
over five years.   
 

Table 1 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover vacation use and provides a comparison 

between that spending trend and funding authorized through the budget process.  

Table 1. 

Vacation Replacement 

Description:  
Overtime wages paid to cover firefighters who are on vacation. Staffing must fall below 14 firefighters 
before funds in this line are used.  

Drivers:  
1. CBA Article X – Vacations, Section 2 – Vacation Selection 
2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1) 

Triggers:  
Use of vacation by Firefighters  

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (YTD) 

Budgeted $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

Actual $80,145 $87,129 $120,844 $146,616 $79,547 

 
 

 
 

 

$0.00 

$20,000.00 

$40,000.00 

$60,000.00 

$80,000.00 

$100,000.00 

$120,000.00 

$140,000.00 

$160,000.00 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



13 
 

Table 2 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover long-term sick leave use and provides a 

comparison between that spending trend and funding authorized through the budget process.  

Table 2. 

Sick Replacement  - LT 

Description:  
Overtime wages paid to cover firefighters who use more than 72 hours of sick leave for one occurrence. 
Long term sick leave is defined by the Family Medical Leave Act as an absence of more than three shifts. 
Staffing must fall below 14 firefighters before funds in this line are used. 

Drivers: 
1. CBA Article XI – Sick Leave, Section 1 – Use of Sick Leave 
2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1) 

Triggers: 
Use of sick leave (short term) by firefighters  

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (YTD) 

Budgeted  $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

Actual $94,064 $82,600 $75,588 $59,842 $37,794 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

10,000 

20,000 

30,000 

40,000 

50,000 

60,000 

70,000 

80,000 

90,000 

100,000 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



14 
 

Table 3 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover short term sick leave use and provides a 

comparison between that spending trend and funding authorized through the budget process.  

Table 3. 

Sick Replacement - ST 

Description: 
Overtime wages paid to cover firefighters who use 72 hours or less of sick leave - for one occurrence. 
Staffing must fall below 14 firefighters before funds in this line are used. 

Drivers: 
1. CBA Article XI – Sick Leave, Section 1 – Use of Sick Leave 
2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1) 

Triggers: 
Use of sick leave (long term) by firefighters  

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (YTD) 

Budgeted  $89,000 $89,000 $89,000 $89,000 $89,000 

Actual $157,578 $161,537 $141,154 $182,139 $94,489 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

$0  

$20,000  

$40,000  

$60,000  

$80,000  

$100,000  

$120,000  

$140,000  

$160,000  

$180,000  

$200,000  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



15 
 

Table 4 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover mandatory training and provides a 

comparison between that spending trend and funding authorized through the budget process.  

Table 4. 

Mandatory Training  

Description: 
This line is used to cover firefighters who are off-duty and are required to attend training or provide 
mandatory training for on-duty staff.  

Drivers: 
1. City Ordinance Section 20-20. – Chief 

2. Title 30-A, Chapter 153: Municipal Fire Protection § 3153. Fire Chiefs 

3. Title 26, Chapter 6: § 561-A General Duties 

4. Title 26, Chapter 28: Minimum Safety Standards § 2102. Firefighter Training and Education 

Triggers: 
1. Required annual Bureau of Labor basic safety training 
2. Firefighting refreshers 
3. Refreshers on confined space, rope, water, and other forms of special rescue 
4. Probationary Firefighter training  

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (YTD) 

Budgeted $12,952 $18,463 $18,464 $18,768 $18,768 

Actual $12,185 $48,986 $10,924 $37,008 $24,336 

 

 
 

 

 

 

$0  

$10,000  

$20,000  

$30,000  

$40,000  

$50,000  

$60,000  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



16 
 

Table 5 has only been inserted into this document because it is still listed on our annual appropriation 

request and final budget documents.  

Table 5. 

Outside Jobs 

Description: This is currently no expense budget associated with this line  
Outside jobs are those that are considered special functions and performed by off duty firefighters. 
Expenses associated with staffing for these jobs in borne by the organizer and result in revenue for the 
city. Outside jobs are infrequent.  

Drivers: N/A 

Triggers: N/A 

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 0 0 0 0 0 

Actual 0 0 0 0 0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



17 
 

Table 6 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover extra assignments and provides a 

comparison between that spending trend and funding authorized through the budget process.  

Table 6. 

Extra Assignments 

Description: 
This line is used to fund a sundry of overtime expenses. These include, but are not limited to military 
leave, storm coverage, community events, equipment repair, court attendance, completing 
documentation for late calls, and others.  

Drivers: 
1. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1) 
2. City Ordinance Section 20-20. – Chief 
3. Federal regulations covering the use of military leave  

Triggers: 
1. Military leave 
2. Administrative leave 
3. State required EMS report completion 
4. Maintence and repair of equipment including delivery of vehicles to out of town repair facilities 

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 0 $15,990 $15,990 $16,083 $16,083 

Actual $67,953 $64,943 $43,571 $79,172 $62,336 

 

 
 

 

 

 

$0  

$10,000  

$20,000  

$30,000  

$40,000  

$50,000  

$60,000  

$70,000  

$80,000  

$90,000  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



18 
 

Table 7 shows a five year trend of overtime spending to cover vacancies that result from firefighters 

retiring or leaving the job. This table also provides a comparison between that spending trend and 

funding authorized through the budget process.  

Table 7. 

Vacancies/Retirement 

Description: 
This line covers expenses associated with unexpected vacancies or retirements. Staffing must fall below 
14 firefighters on-duty before funds in this line are used. 

Drivers: 
1. CBA Article X – Vacations, Section 2 – Vacation Selection 
2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1) 

Triggers: 
Daily staffing shortages that result from vacancies or retirements  

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted  $11,000 $12,844 $12,844 $12,844 $12,844 

Actual $37,562 $60,272 $5,728 0 0 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

$0.00 

$10,000.00 

$20,000.00 

$30,000.00 

$40,000.00 

$50,000.00 

$60,000.00 

$70,000.00 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



19 
 

Table 8 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover firefighters who are absent due to a 

work-related injury. This table also provides a comparison between that spending trend and funding 

authorized through the budget process.  

Table 8. 

Work Related Injuries 

Description: 
This line funds wages used to replace firefighters who are out of work due to work related injuries. 
Staffing must fall below 14 firefighters before funds in this line are used. 

Drivers:  
1. CBA Article X – Vacations, Section 2 – Vacation Selection 

2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1) 

Triggers: 
Daily staffing shortages that result from work related injuries 

5 Year Trend  2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted  $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 

Actual  $24,299 $65,964 $18,440 $30,819 $1,559 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

$0  

$10,000  

$20,000  

$30,000  

$40,000  

$50,000  

$60,000  

$70,000  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



20 
 

Table 9 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover firefighters who attend meetings within 

the department or serve as a representative of the department at meetings held off site. This table also 

provides a comparison between that spending trend and funding authorized through the budget 

process.  

Table 9. 

Meetings 

Description: 
This line is used to cover overtime wages associated with monthly senior leadership meetings, to 
reimburse freighters who attend meetings off duty, and for occasional professional standards meetings 
to address matters such as health and safety, quality assurance, and other policy related topics. 

Drivers: 
1. City Ordinance Section 20-20. – Chief 

Triggers:  
1. Senior leadership meetings 
2. Attendance at board and committee meetings 
3. Attendance at City planning meetings (typically for incident or event planning) 

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted  $5,000 $6,425 $6,425 $6,509 $6,509 

Actual $11,264 $13,308 $14,081 $15,517 $9,427 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

$0  

$2,000  

$4,000  

$6,000  

$8,000  

$10,000  

$12,000  

$14,000  

$16,000  

$18,000  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted  

Actual 



21 
 

Table 10 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover firefighters who are absent due to a 

family related death. This table also provides a comparison between that spending trend and funding 

authorized through the budget process.  

Table 10. 

Funeral Leave 

Description: 
These funds are used to cover firefighters who are out due to a death in the family. Staffing must fall 
below 14 firefighters before funds in this line are used. 

Drivers: 
1. CBA Article X – Vacations, Section 2 – Vacation Selection 

2. CBA Article XV – Recall to work, Section 1 – Off Duty (paragraph 1) 

Triggers: 
Daily staffing shortages that result from firefighters using sick leave 

5 Year Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted $2,500 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 

Actual $6,208 $7,480 $5,645 $7,629 $1,526 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

$0  

$1,000  

$2,000  

$3,000  

$4,000  

$5,000  

$6,000  

$7,000  

$8,000  

$9,000  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted 

Actual 



22 
 

Table 11 shows a five-year trend of overtime spending to cover firefighters who report back to work for 

fires or other major incidents. This table also provides a comparison between that spending trend and 

funding authorized through the budget process.  

Table 11.  

Multiple Alarms 

Description: 
This line is used to fund overtime wages associated with the recalling of off duty firefighters for large 
fires or other significant emergencies.  

Drivers:  
1. City Ordinance Section 20-20. – Chief 

Triggers: 
Large fires or other emergencies that require additional staff 

5 Year Trend  2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted  $9,208 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 

Actual $6,209 0 $19,126 $7,508 $2,568 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$0  

$5,000  

$10,000  

$15,000  

$20,000  

$25,000  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Budgeted  

Actual 



23 
 

Emergency Medical Services – Ambulance Transportation  

Clearly, there is continued confusion about the delivery of ambulance services by the Auburn Fire 

Department. In addition to reviewing overtime expenses, the work group has been charged with 

identifying what the ongoing concerns and questions are relating to the provision of ambulance services. 

Once those concerns have been identified, they will be addressed at a later time, if this group cannot 

answer them. 

Background 

Assumption of ambulance services by the City of Auburn was not a decision that was made rashly. Prior 

to seeking Council approval for this endeavor, several attempts had been made, over the course of 

roughly a year, to form an enhanced public-private partnership (PPP) with the private vendor who was 

providing ambulance services at the time. These efforts were rejected and the existing PPP, which 

created $100K in revenue for the City, was to be canceled over legal concerns voiced by the hospitals.  

While the potential for revenue generation may have taken the forefront in later conversations on the 

topic, it was hardly the initial motivating factor. Increasing system demands, decreased availability of 

the private vendor to provide service, and an inability to adequately manage and track the performance 

measures of the PPP all caused concern among the leadership at the fire department. After several calls 

where Auburn resources were tied up, on scene - for longer than should be necessary – along with the 

private vendor’s reliance on other communities to provide service to Auburn, it was decided that action 

needed to be taken. 

On 05/05/2014, the Auburn City Council ordered the Fire Department to establish ambulance 

transportation as one of its core functions (Attachment 1). In doing so, the Council agreed to alter the 

existing level of services provided by the Fire Department and commit to ensuring that the program 

would be properly maintained and managed.  

Contract Language 

As part of the implementation of ambulance service, the City Manager at the time negotiated a 

Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Auburn Firefighters Local 797 that was later ratified by both 

the Auburn City Council and the Local 797 body. Elements of that agreement, which are still in effect, 

are noted below: 

ARTICLE VI - Wages and Compensation  

Section 2 – Ambulance Assignment Incentive 

Effective April 14, 2015, a stipend of $1.00 per hour shall be paid to each firefighter working on the 

Rescue/Ambulances.  

 

 



24 
 

Section 4 – EMS Licenses 

Any state, region or department-mandated EMS license upgrade or training, for EMT and above, shall 

either be provided by the department while on duty or be fully compensated by the City to include 

overtime, tuition, and books.   

 

The City shall provide an adequate training program to assure that all current EMS providers are able to 

achieve the Maine EMS-required, continuing-education hours in order to renew their license. 

 

Paramedic hiring is preferred 

 

New Hires, after January 1, 2015, are required to be a Paramedic within three (3) years. 

 

Support for new hires and current employees that volunteer to attend Paramedic training: 

 

 Approved costs, fees, overtime and/or shift coverage needed for the firefighter to attend the 

Paramedic course or to maintain licensure shall be borne by the City. 

 

 Except as otherwise identified, “Approved costs or fees” shall mean the costs of textbooks, 

registration, lab, testing, tolls, and parking. 

 

 A department vehicle and fuel shall be provided for travel or mileage.  Use of a personal vehicle 
shall be reimbursed at the prevailing City rate ($.38 per mile for 2016), but not less than 60% of 
the IRS standard mileage rate, from point of departure or duty station if training occurs on a 
scheduled duty day. 

 
Closing 
 
With regard to overtime, an Auburn Fire Chief often finds himself in a quandary. If one were to strictly 
adhere to the funding allowed in the budget, then, under the current model, the Chief would either 
need to deliberately violate the CBA or close a station at least part time. In this scenario, either option 
sets up the fire staff, City, and the Fire Chief for potential litigation and what may be an unacceptable 
level of risk.  
 
Because these risks and potential outcomes are considered unacceptable and directly contradictory to 
other guiding documents and directives, the preceding course of action is not taken. As a result, the 
integrity and ability of the agency, and, in particular, that of the Fire Chief, to self govern - are called into 
question.  
 
With regard to ambulance service, our goal is simple. That goal is to gain a better understanding of what 
the questions, concerns, and beliefs are concerning the service. Once we have obtained that awareness, 
we will be better able to provide more complete and specific answers for questions about the service. 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   April 23, 2018  Order: 36-04232018 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject: Appointing Election Clerks for the period of May 1, 2018 through April 30, 2020. 
 
Information: Title 21-A §503 states that the municipal officers of each municipality shall appoint election 
clerks no later than May 1st of each general election year to serve at each voting place during the time the 
polls are open. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage appointing Election Clerks. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: 2 year appointments are made by May 1st of each General Election year. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  
 

 

Attachments:  

• Title 21-A §503 

• List of nominated Election Clerks submitted by the Democratic Party (the Republican Party did not 
provide a list of names) 

• Order  
 

 



Maine Revised Statutes

Title 21-A: ELECTIONS

Chapter 7: ELECTION OFFICIALS

§503. ELECTION CLERKS
Election clerks are governed by the following provisions. [1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR).]

1. Qualifications; appointment; compensation.  Election clerks must be at least 18 years of age,
registered to vote and residents of the municipality, except that, if the municipal officers, after providing
timely notice to state and local chairs of political parties of the lack of available election clerks, are unable
to appoint a sufficient number of election clerks who are residents of the municipality, the municipal clerk
may appoint election clerks who are not residents of the municipality but who are residents of the county
and are otherwise qualified to fill the vacancies. The municipal officers of each municipality shall appoint
election clerks no later than May 1st of each general election year to serve at each voting place during the
time the polls are open and as counters after the polls close. A list of the election clerks appointed under this
subsection must be posted at each voting place. Election clerks are entitled to a reasonable compensation as
determined by the municipal officers.

[ 2007, c. 422, §1 (AMD) .]

1-A. Student election clerks. 

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (RP) .]

2. Representation of parties.  The municipal officers shall consider the following for appointment as
election clerks.

A. The municipal officers shall consider persons nominated by the municipal, county or state committees
of the major parties to serve as election clerks. The municipal officers shall appoint at least one election
clerk from each of the major parties to serve at each voting place during the time the polls are open.
The municipal officers shall also appoint a sufficient number of election clerks to serve as counters
after the polls close. The election clerks must be selected so that the number of election clerks from one
major party does not exceed the number of election clerks from another major party by more than one.
[2007, c. 422, §2 (AMD).]

B. The municipal officers shall appoint at least one election clerk nominated by the municipal committee
of a qualified minor party represented on the last general election ballot for each voting place at the
committee's request. [1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR).]

C. Notwithstanding subsection 1, the municipal officers may also consider persons who are 17 years of
age to serve as student election clerks for a specific election. A student election clerk may perform all the
functions of an election clerk as prescribed by this Title. [2003, c. 584, §4 (AMD).]

All nominations for election clerks must be submitted to the municipal officers no later than April 1st of each
general election year. If a municipal committee of a major party fails to submit a list of nominees to serve as
election clerks, the municipal officers may appoint registered voters enrolled in that party to serve as election
clerks.

If the municipal officers are unable to appoint a sufficient number of election clerks as set forth in paragraphs
A, B and C, they may appoint any other registered voter, as long as the balance between major political
parties is maintained.

[ 2013, c. 131, §14 (AMD) .]

Generated
11.3.2017   |  1



MRS Title 21-A §503. ELECTION CLERKS

3. Number appointed to serve each voting place.  The municipal officers shall appoint at least 2
election clerks as provided by subsection 2, paragraph A to serve at each voting place during the time the
polls are open. If required to do so by subsection 2, paragraph B, they shall also appoint one election clerk to
serve at each voting place during the time the polls are open. Additional election clerks may be appointed as
needed. In the event of a vacancy in the election clerks appointed under this subsection, the municipal officers
shall appoint alternate election clerks who may be called into service.

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR) .]

4. Number appointed to serve as counters.  The municipal officers shall appoint election clerks in the
same manner as in subsection 3 to serve as counters after the polls close.

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR) .]

5. Vacancies.  If a sufficient number of election clerks is not available to serve on election day, the
municipal clerk or the warden may appoint the necessary number of election clerks to fill the vacancies.
When filling a vacancy, the municipal clerk or the warden shall first draw from the list of alternates appointed
under subsection 3 and make every attempt to appoint a person with the same enrollment status as the person
who vacated the position.

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR) .]

6. Oath of office.  Before assuming the duties of office, election clerks are sworn by the municipal clerk
or the warden and the oath is recorded.

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR) .]

7. Term of office.  An election clerk holds office for 2 years from the date of appointment and until a
successor is appointed and qualified, except that an election clerk who is appointed to represent a qualified
minor party represented on the last general election ballot holds office only for 2 years from the date of
appointment.

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR) .]

8. Duties.  Election clerks shall attend the voting places for which they are appointed at each election
during the time the polls are open or during the counting of the ballots after the polls close, as required by
the terms of their appointment. They are under the direction of the warden and shall assist the warden as
requested.

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR) .]

9. Application of city charter.  This section does not affect a city charter that provides for the election
of 2 persons to assist the warden in receiving, sorting and counting ballots. The persons elected under the
authority of the charter are considered to be election clerks and each must represent a different major party.

[ 1995, c. 459, §33 (NEW) .]

10. Training. 

[ 2001, c. 415, §5 (AFF);  2001, c. 415, §2 (RP) .]

SECTION HISTORY

  |  2 Generated
11.3.2017



MRS Title 21-A §503. ELECTION CLERKS

1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).  1985, c. 314, (AMD).  1991, c. 399, §2 (AMD). 
1991, c. 466, §18 (AMD).  1993, c. 473, §10 (AMD).  1993, c. 473, §46
(AFF).  1995, c. 459, §33 (RPR).  1999, c. 450, §14 (AMD).  2001, c. 310,
§28 (AMD).  2001, c. 415, §2 (AMD).  2001, c. 415, §5 (AFF).  2003, c.
584, §4 (AMD).  2007, c. 422, §§1, 2 (AMD).  2013, c. 131, §14 (AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the First Special Session of the 128th Maine Legislature and is current through November 1, 2017. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.

Generated
11.3.2017   |  3



2018 DEMOCRATIC CAUCUSES
PO Box 5258 Augusta ME 04332

This is to notify you that on March 4, 2018 the Democratic Municipal Committee of Auburn
has officially nominated the following persons to serve as Election Clerks to work at the polls on
Election Day for the next two years. State law provides that you should select from this list
when you choose Democrats to serve as Election Clerks. In the event that any of those persons
listed cannot serve, please notify the Auburn Municipal Chair and another name will be
submitted.

Please consider this an official notice in compliance with state election law.

Caucus
State File ID

Name
Address

Email
Phone

Auburn 1-1
009302726

Stephen Walbridge
296 N Auburn Rd
Auburn ME 04210

Sailing.walbridges@gmail.com
(207) 312-5222 Home
(207) 409-0092 Mobile

Auburn 2-1
048702838

Robert Cavanagh
127 Field Ave
Auburn ME 04210

railtrailbiker@gmail.com
(207) 783-1032 Home

Auburn 2-1
048708046

Mara King
50 Davis Ave
Auburn ME 04210

mararh430@aol.com
(207) 689-4404 Mobile

Auburn 2-1
048710355

Joseph Mailey
82 Webster St
Auburn ME 04210

JMa5365902@aol.com
(207) 212-4226 Mobile

Auburn 3-1
048806824

Patricia Dube
199 Sunderland Dr
Auburn ME 04210

patdube30@gmail.com
(207) 713-4683 Mobile

Auburn 3-1
048708745

Anne Kinney
2 Lepidolite Ct
Auburn ME 04210

akinneyuu@gmail.com
(207) 782-7497 Home

Susan M Clements-Dallaire
60 Court St
Auburn ME 04210



Caucus
State File ID

Name
Address

Email
Phone

Auburn 3-1
048712177

Marjorie Oxman
48 Weatherly Pl
Auburn ME 04210

margieoxman@gmail.com
(207) 782-0036 Home
(207) 576-3247 Mobile

Auburn 3-1
100173924

Matthew Pettengill
40 Millbrook Ln
Auburn ME 04210

mpettengill2009@hotmail.com
(207) 577-2511 Mobile

Auburn 3-1
048713754

Bonnie Ross
88 Hillside Ave
Auburn ME 04210

bonnieross482@gmail.com
(207) 782-0198 Home

Auburn 4-1
050700184

Sharon Benoit
9 Clubhouse Ln
Auburn ME 04210

sharonbenoit@gmail.com
(207) 241-8852 Home
(207) 740-0278 Mobile

Auburn 4-1
048702741

Brian Carrier
32 Constellation Dr
Auburn ME 04210

(207) 795-6953 Home
(207) 576-0692 Mobile

Auburn 4-1
048714283

Robert Shaw
1091 Old Danville Rd
Auburn ME 04210

marileeshaw@aol.com
(207) 402-5075 Mobile

Auburn 5-1
048702079

Martha Brodeur
83 Sixth St
Auburn ME 04210

msim@myfairpoint.net
(207) 784-3907 Home

Auburn 5-1 Alana Mallar
34 Second Street, #3r
Auburn ME 04210

(207) 520-0796 Mobile



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
ORDER 36-04232018 

 
ORDERED, that the following individuals be and hereby are appointed as Election Clerks for the 
period of May 1, 2018 through April 30, 2020.  
 

PARTY LAST NAME FIRST NAME 

R Amero Claire 

R Bachand Claire 

R Brown Wanda 

R Galway Bonnie 

R Hayes Priscilla 

R Lee Linda 

R Martel Gerald 

R O’Neil Lorraine 

R Pulsifer Bobbi 

R White Carmen 

   

D Bate Jacqueline 

D Benoit Sharon B. 

D Bilodeau Normand 

D Brodeur Martha E.S. 

D Cavanaugh Robert 

D Cox Margaret 

D Desgrosseilliers Edward 

D Dow Mary Ellen 

D Doyon Stella 

D Dube Patricia A. 

D Dufresne Carmen 

D Gill Ariel 

D Herrick Eleanor 

D King Mara 

D Kinney Anne 

D Langelier Pauline 

D Mahon Joan 

D Mailey Joseph 

D Mallar Alana 

D Martin Donna 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

D Miller Priscilla 

D Oxman Marjorie 

D Noyes Irene 

D Pettengill Matthew D. 

D Ross Bonnie L. 

D Shaw Robert C. 

D Walbridge Linda L. 

D Walbridge Stephen R. 

   

U Allen Rhonda 

U Gray Margaret 

U Martel Claudette 

 

 











 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 23, 2018   
 
Author:  Yvette Bouttenot 
 

Subject:  FFY2018 Draft Annual Action Plan – Community Development Block Grant and HOME Budget 
   1st Public Hearing 
 
Information:   
The process for the adoption of the FFY2018 Budget and Action Plan continues with a Public Hearing before 
the City Council.  The Citizen Participation Plan requires two Public Hearings to be held during the City Council 
meetings.  The 2nd will be held on May 7, 2018.  The proposed budget is as follows: 
 
Community Development Block Grant $1,143,561 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program/Auburn grant $873,956 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program/Lewiston grant $531,456 
 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: CDBG Budget supports portions of Code Enforcement and Economic Development 
Deputy Director salaries formerly covered by the general fund. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Public Hearing 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  March 19th and April 23rd Workshop 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments: FFY2018 CDBG and HOME Draft Budget and Action Plan 
 

































 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 23, 2018   
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Board and Committee Appointments 
 
The Appointment Committee met on April 18, 2018 to review applications and make their nominations for boards and 
committees of the City as follows: 
 
Stephen Martelli – Planning Board (associate member, new appointment) with a term expiration of 1/1/2020.   
 
Jason L. Sirois – Board of Assessment Review (full member, new appointment) with a term expiration of 10/01/2019. 
 
Tim Griffin – Citizens Advisory Committee (new appointment) with a term expiration of 6/30/2019. 
 
Rick M. Martel – Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (new appointment) with a term expiration of 10/01/2018. 
 
Tizz E.H. Crowley and Rhyanna D. Larose – Conservation Commission (re-appointments) with term expirations of 
06/01/2021. 
 
Council may enter into executive session pursuant to 1 MRSA Sec. 406(6)(A) to review applications or for further 
discussion before making appointments. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Consider appointing members as recommended by the Appointment Committee. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Appointment Committee met on April 18, 2018 to make their recommendations. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.    Signature:          
 

 
Attachments:  
List of applicants 
List of vacancies 
Applications 
Orders 
 



Board Committee Applications

April 18, 2018

Board or Committee Ward Last Name First Name Address Preference

Board of Assessment 3 Sirois Jason L. 29 Fairmount Ave.

Citizens Advisory Committee 2 Griffin Tim 30 Dexter Ave.

Conservation Commission 3 Martel Rick M. 22 Cedarwood Road 2nd choice

4 *Larose Rhyanna D. 164 Bennett Avenue

1 *Crowley Tizz E.H. 35 University Street

5 Martelli Stephen 41 Broad Street

Parks & Recreation Advisory 3 Martel Rick M. 22 Cedarwood Road 1st choice

Planning Board 3 Martel Rick M. 22 Cedarwood Road 3rd choice

5 Martelli Stephen 41 Broad Street

* Indicates this applicant is seeking re-appointment

** Indicates this person is an associate/alternate member seeking full member status



 

VACANCIES 

 

Audit Committee - 1 vacancy with a term expiration of 12/1/2019 

Board of Assessment Review - 4 vacancies - 1 full member position, with a term expiration of 

10/01/2019, and three alternate positions. One with a term expiration of 10/1/2020, and two with 

term expirations of 10/1/2022 

Cable TV Advisory Committee – 2 vacancies - one with a term expiration of 6/1/2019, one 

with a term expiration of 6/1/2020  

Citizens Advisory Committee - 1-4 vacancies, all with 6/30/2019 term expirations 

Conservation Commission - 2 vacancies, both with term expirations of 6/1/2021 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - 3 vacancies from either WARDS 2, 3, 4, or 5 - one 

with a term expiration of 10/01/2018, and two with term expirations of 10/01/2019 

Planning Board - 2 vacancies, both associate positions with term expirations of 1/1/2020 

Zoning Board of Appeals - 1 vacancy- 1 associate member position with a 10/01/2020 term 

expiration 

 















Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 37-04232018 
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 04/18/2018; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  
Board of Assessment Review 
(Full member) 

10/01/2019 Jason Sirois (new appointment) 
 

 
 

 
  







Timothy J. Griffin 
30 Dexter Avenue 
Auburn, Maine 04210 
207-783-2978 
Wayfarer9@MyFairpoint.net 

Objective: I am seeking a position on an Auburn committee or board. 

EDUCATION: 
 
BA, Psychology, University of Maine, Orono, Maine 
 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

Employment and Training Program Manager 2014–December 2017(upon retirement) 

Bureau of Employment Services, Augusta, Maine 

• Coordinates implementation and maintenance of management information systems 
• Provides technical assistance to and trains Local Workforce Board staff, CareerCenter 

staff, and BES administration staff on reporting, validation, & eligibilty, data entry issues 
• Monitors Local Workforce Boards, service providers, and CareerCenters, for compliance 

to federal and state program & administrative requirements 
• Produces reports in response to federal, state, and management requirements  
• Oversees data validation and quality control activities to ensure that federal reporting are 

accurate and complete 

 

Management Analyst II      1985–2014 
 

Bureau of Employment Services, Augusta, Maine 

• Coordinates implementation and maintenance of management information systems 
• Provides technical assistance and training to Local Workforce Board staff, CareerCenter 

staff, and BES administration staff on reporting, validation, eligibilty, & data entry issues 
• Monitors, Service Providers, and CareerCenters for compliance with federal and state 

law, regulations, and policy 
• Participates in negotiations with Local Workforce Boards and ETA Regional Office on 

annual performance standards 
• Designs, produces, & submits reports in response to federal, state, and management 

requirements  
• Oversees data validation and quality control activities to ensure that federal reporting is 

accurate, complete and conforms to federal and state law, regulations, and policies. 



 

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE -- Service to the community is my aspiration, my mission 

Through the years, I have volunteered for activities such as: 

 Boy Scout Troop 111 
 Literacy Volunteers 
 Trinity Jubilee Center – helped served meals 
 Served in many capacities for the Baha’i Faith  

o Junior Youth activities 
o Study Circle tutor 
o Served on Spiritual Assembly of the Baha’is of Auburn 

 Androscoggin Home Health and Hospice 
 Good Shepherd Food Bank 
 Restorative Justice Institute 

 

HONOR/AWARDS 

• Maine Management Institute, April-May 1989 
• DOL Employee of the Month, Augusta Region, December 2002 
• Certified Continuous Improvement Practitioner - Bronze, January 2011 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 38-04232018 
 
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 04/18/2018; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Citizens Advisory Committee 06/30/2019 
 

Tim Griffin (new appointment) 
 

 
 

 

  

























Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 39-04232018 
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee members 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 04/18/2018; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Conservation Commission 06/01/2021 
06/01/2021 

Tizz E.H. Crowley (re-appointment) 
Rhyanna D. Larose (re-appointment) 
 

 
 

 

  













Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 40-04232018 
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 04/18/2018; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Parks & Recreation Advisory 
Board 

10/01/2018 Rick M. Martel (new appointment) 
 

 
 

 

  

















Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 41-04232018 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 04/18/2018; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Planning Board – Associate 
Member 

01/01/2020 
 

Stephen Martelli  (new appointment) 

 
 

 

  



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 

TO:    Peter Crichton, City Manager 

FROM:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 

REF:    March 2018 Financial Report 

DATE:  April 18, 2018 

 
The following is a discussion regarding the significant variances found in the City’s March financial 
report. Please note that although the monthly financial report contains amounts reported by the 
School Department, this discussion is limited to the City’s financial results and does not attempt to 
explain any variances for the School Department. 
 
The City has completed its ninth month of the current fiscal year. As a guideline for tracking purposes, 
revenues and expenditures should amount to approximately 75.0% of the annual budget.  However, 
not all costs and revenues are distributed evenly throughout the year; individual line items can vary 
based upon cyclical activity.    
 
Revenues 
 
Revenues collected through March 31st, including the school department were $69,489,219, or 
83.24%, of the budget. The municipal revenues including property taxes were $52,198,979, or 87.41% 
of the budget which is more than the same period last year by $3,112,456. The accounts listed below 
are noteworthy. 

 
A. March 15th the second installment for real estate taxes were due. The City collected 

$13,780,717 in the month of March.  
 

B. Excise tax for the month of March is at 76.32%. This is a $52,619 increase from FY 17.  
 

C. State Revenue Sharing for the month of March is 72.46% or $1,093,529. This is a 0.65% 
increase from last March to this March.  
 
 



 2 

 
Expenditures 
 
City expenditures through March 2018 are $32,905,422 or 78.87%, of the budget.  Noteworthy 
variances are: 
 

A. Transfer to TIF: Last fiscal year the transfer from the General Fund to the TIF Funds was 
done in April, this transfer was made in March this year. 
 

B. The transfer to Worker’s Compensation was made in March this year and last year it was 
done in April. 

 
 
Investments  
 
This section contains an investment schedule as of March 31st.  Currently the City’s funds are earning 
an average interest rate of .92%.  
 
         
        Respectfully submitted, 

        
          

Jill M. Eastman 
 Finance Director 



 UNAUDITED UNAUDITED AUDITED

March 31 February 28 Increase JUNE 30

2018 2018 (Decrease) 2017

ASSETS

CASH 26,451,123$         20,012,410$       6,438,713$           11,272,850$       

RECEIVABLES -                        

  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 2,019,327             1,964,668           54,659                  2,532,611           

  TAXES RECEIVABLE-CURRENT 3,985,177             17,799,565         (13,814,388)          1,051,346           

  DELINQUENT TAXES 666,570                667,730              (1,160)                   612,972              

  TAX LIENS 746,251                824,113              (77,862)                 562,272              

  NET DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS (1,268,852)            3,137,858           (4,406,710)            3,021,419           

 

TOTAL ASSETS 32,599,596$         44,406,344$       (11,806,749)$        19,053,470$       

 

 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (91,591)$               (30,342)$             (61,249)$               (851,716)$           

PAYROLL LIABILITIES (1,434,096)            (403,561)             (1,030,535)            -                      

ACCRUED PAYROLL -                        -                      -                        (4,075,304)          

STATE FEES PAYABLE (54,852)                 (47,085)               (7,767)                   -                      

ESCROWED AMOUNTS (9,140)                   (9,140)                 -                        (2,826)                 

DEFERRED REVENUE (5,248,466)            (19,141,877)        13,893,411           (2,057,984)          

 

     TOTAL LIABILITIES (6,838,144)$          (19,632,005)$      12,793,860$         (6,987,830)$        

 

FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED (24,670,499)$        (23,683,387)$      (987,112)$             (8,863,571)$        

FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED FOR  

     WORKERS COMP & UNEMPLOYMENT 776,017                776,017              -                        (2,023,296)          

FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED (1,866,970)            (1,866,970)          -                            (1,178,773)          

 

     TOTAL FUND BALANCE (25,761,452)$        (24,774,340)$      (987,112)$             (12,065,640)$      

 

  

     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (32,599,596)$        (44,406,344)$      11,806,749$         (19,053,470)$      

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

 BALANCE SHEET - CITY GENERAL FUND, WC AND UNEMPLOYMENT FUND 

AS of March 2018, February 2018, and June 2017



REVENUES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

THROUGH March 31, 2018 VS March 31, 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF  

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU MAR 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU MAR 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

TAXES

  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE- 48,061,530$           44,194,815$       91.95% 46,032,435$     41,420,641$       89.98% 2,774,174$       

  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVENUE -$                        830,051$             -$                  741,375$             88,676$            

  HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT 1,015,000$             821,845$            80.97% 750,000$          569,088$            75.88% 252,757$          

  EXCISE 3,810,000$             2,907,750$         76.32% 3,365,000$       2,855,131$         84.85% 52,619$            

  PENALTIES & INTEREST 150,000$                88,435$              58.96% 150,000$          104,662$            69.77% (16,227)$           

     TOTAL TAXES 53,036,530$           48,842,896$       92.09% 50,297,435$     45,690,897$       90.84% 3,151,999$       

  

LICENSES AND PERMITS   

  BUSINESS 62,000$                  50,502$              81.46% 48,000$            43,229$              90.06% 7,273$              

  NON-BUSINESS 345,000$                347,981$            100.86% 427,384$          374,049$            87.52% (26,068)$           

     TOTAL LICENSES 407,000$                398,483$            97.91% 475,384$          417,278$            87.78% (18,795)$           

  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE   

  STATE-LOCAL ROAD ASSISTANCE 400,000$                406,860$            101.72% 400,000$          399,292$            99.82% 7,568$              

  STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,509,117$             1,093,529$         72.46% 1,468,313$       1,054,377$         71.81% 39,152$            

  WELFARE REIMBURSEMENT 95,000$                  127,842$            134.57% 59,000$            36,663$              62.14% 91,179$            

  OTHER STATE AID 32,000$                  14,943$              46.70% 22,000$            2,681$                12.19% 12,262$            

  CITY OF LEWISTON 228,384$                -$                   0.00% 160,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                  

     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE 2,264,501$             1,643,175$         72.56% 2,109,313$       1,493,013$         70.78% 150,162$          

  

CHARGE FOR SERVICES   

  GENERAL GOVERNMENT 144,440$                90,767$              62.84% 132,640$          73,034$              55.06% 17,733$            

  PUBLIC SAFETY 236,277$                109,234$            46.23% 139,077$          87,496$              62.91% 21,738$            

  EMS TRANSPORT 1,250,000$             712,592$            57.01% 1,250,000$       769,985$            61.60% (57,393)$           

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,630,717$             912,593$            55.96% 1,521,717$       930,515$            61.15% (17,922)$           

  

FINES   

  PARKING TICKETS & MISC FINES 70,000$                  40,770$              58.24% 65,000$            44,871$              69.03% (4,101)$             

   

MISCELLANEOUS    

  INVESTMENT INCOME 32,000$                  36,617$              114.43% 10,000$            45,880$              458.80% (9,263)$             

  RENTS 35,000$                  27,922$              79.78% 18,000$            21,040$              116.89% 6,882$              

  UNCLASSIFIED 10,000$                  57,465$              574.65% 10,000$            3,135$                31.35% 54,330$            

  COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE FEES -$                        45,117$               -$                  33,845$               11,272$            

  SALE OF PROPERTY 20,000$                  14,611$              73.05% 20,000$            11,344$              56.72% 3,267$              

  RECREATION PROGRAMS/ARENA  -$                  -$                    -$                  

  MMWAC HOST FEES 215,000$                163,789$            76.18% 210,000$          266,650$            126.98% (102,861)$         

  TRANSFER IN: TIF 1,287,818$             -$                   0.00% 1,537,818$       -$                   0.00% -$                  

  TRANSFER IN: REC SPEC REVENUE 54,718$                  -$                   0.00% 54,718$            0.00% -$                  

  ENERGY EFFICIENCY  -$                  1,625$                 (1,625)$             

  CDBG 214,430$                15,541$              7.25% 254,127$          120,592$            47.45% (105,051)$         

  UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT 27,500$                  -$                   0.00% 27,500$            5,838$                21.23% (5,838)$             

  CITY FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 412,500$                -$                   0.00% 825,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                  

     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,308,966$             361,061$            15.64% 2,967,163$       509,949$            17.19% (148,888)$         

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 59,717,714$           52,198,979$       87.41% 57,436,012$     49,086,523$       85.46% 3,112,456$       

SCHOOL REVENUES

  EDUCATION SUBSIDY 22,039,568$           16,786,691$       76.17% 21,373,337$     14,715,798$       68.85% 2,070,893$       

  EDUCATION 811,744$                503,549$            62.03% 814,540$          524,258$            64.36% (20,709)$           

  SCHOOL FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 906,882$                -$                   0.00% 906,882$          -$                   0.00% -$                  

TOTAL SCHOOL 23,758,194$           17,290,240$       72.78% 23,094,759$     15,240,056$       65.99% 2,050,184$       

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 83,475,908$           69,489,219$       83.24% 80,530,771$     64,326,579$       79.88% 5,162,640$       

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



Unaudited  Unaudited  

FY 2018 EXP % OF FY 2017 EXP % OF

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU MAR 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU MAR 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

ADMINISTRATION

   MAYOR AND COUNCIL 80,300$                63,354$              78.90% 78,464$          67,047$              85.45% (3,693)$          

   CITY MANAGER 581,170$              378,465$            65.12% 378,880$        181,481$            47.90% 196,984$       

   CITY CLERK 181,332$              132,649$            73.15% 177,906$        127,374$            71.60% 5,275$           

   FINANCIAL SERVICES 675,239$              474,343$            70.25% 637,754$        471,083$            73.87% 3,260$           

   HUMAN RESOURCES 156,887$              108,037$            68.86% 150,435$        60,358$              40.12% 47,679$         

   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 531,551$              410,012$            77.14% 479,324$        389,919$            81.35% 20,093$         
   LEGAL SERVICES -$                          -$                         45,650$          87,253$              191.13% (87,253)$        

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,206,479$           1,566,860$         71.01% 1,948,413$     1,384,515$         71.06% 182,345$       

COMMUNITY SERVICES

   ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,717,028$           801,960$            46.71% 1,938,437$     962,991$            49.68% (161,031)$      

   HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 220,870$              174,502$            79.01% 171,474$        161,556$            94.22% 12,946$         

   RECREATION & SPECIAL EVENTS* 388,581$              254,675$            65.54% 341,772$        207,449$            60.70% 47,226$         
   PUBLIC LIBRARY 998,189$              748,642$            75.00% 979,516$        726,837$            74.20% 21,805$         

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 3,324,668$           1,979,779$         59.55% 3,431,199$     2,058,833$         60.00% (79,054)$        

 

FISCAL SERVICES

   DEBT SERVICE 6,366,533$           6,298,375$         98.93% 6,406,845$     6,260,543$         97.72% 37,832$         

   FACILITIES 640,201$              438,877$            68.55% 645,756$        393,244$            60.90% 45,633$         

   WORKERS COMPENSATION 555,164$              555,164$            100.00% 522,088$        -$                        0.00% 555,164$       

   WAGES & BENEFITS 5,960,970$           4,468,500$         74.96% 5,274,528$     3,875,714$         73.48% 592,786$       
   EMERGENCY RESERVE (10108062-670000) 415,454$              -$                        0.00% 375,289$        -$                        0.00% -$                   

TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 13,938,322$         11,760,916$       84.38% 13,224,506$   10,529,501$       79.62% 1,231,415$    

PUBLIC SAFETY

   FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,227,575$           3,328,267$         78.73% 4,049,396$     3,203,234$         79.10% 125,033$       

   FIRE EMS 708,828$              360,490$            50.86% 590,997$        327,888$            55.48% 32,602$         
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 4,043,998$           3,012,487$         74.49% 3,875,113$     2,833,232$         73.11% 179,255$       

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 8,980,401$           6,701,244$         74.62% 8,515,506$     6,364,354$         74.74% 336,890$       

PUBLIC WORKS

   PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4,611,116$           3,408,765$         73.92% 4,496,349$     3,371,385$         74.98% 37,380$         

   SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 964,118$              640,107$            66.39% 932,689$        589,197$            63.17% 50,910$         
   WATER AND SEWER 632,716$              328,858$            51.98% 599,013$        452,380$            75.52% (123,522)$      

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 6,207,950$           4,377,730$         70.52% 6,028,051$     4,412,962$         73.21% (35,232)$        

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAMS

   AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 167,800$              164,267$            97.89% 106,000$        79,730$              75.22% 84,537$         

   E911 COMMUNICATION CENTER 1,088,857$           801,841$            73.64% 1,088,857$     805,310$            73.96% (3,469)$          

   LATC-PUBLIC TRANSIT 189,949$              189,949$            100.00% 182,244$        182,244$            100.00% 7,705$           

   LA ARTS -$                          -$                         -$                    -$                         -$                   
   TAX SHARING 270,000$              16,809$              6.23% 270,000$        18,015$              6.67% (1,206)$          

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,716,606$           1,172,866$         68.32% 1,647,101$     1,085,299$         65.89% 87,567$         

COUNTY TAX 2,296,224$           2,296,224$         100.00% 2,167,824$     2,167,824$         100.00% 128,400$       

TIF (10108058-580000) 3,049,803$           3,049,803$         100.00% 2,824,803$     -$                        0.00% 3,049,803$    

OVERLAY -$                          -$                         -$                    56,978$              0.00% (56,978)$        

-$                   

TOTAL CITY DEPARTMENTS 41,720,453$         32,905,422$       78.87% 39,787,403$   28,060,266$       70.53% 4,845,156$    

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 41,755,455$         27,437,699$       65.71% 40,743,368$   22,960,435$       56.35% 4,477,264$    

  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 83,475,908$         60,343,121$       72.29% 80,530,771$   51,020,701$       63.36% 9,322,420$    

 CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

THROUGH March 31, 2018 VS March 31, 2017



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

INVESTMENT SCHEDULE

AS OF March 31, 2018

BALANCE BALANCE INTEREST

INVESTMENT FUND March 31, 2018 February 28, 2018 RATE

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 449 CAPITAL PROJECTS 5,203,939.28$              5,200,846.57$              0.45%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 502 SR-TIF 1,013,567.38$              1,012,965.06$              0.45%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 836 GENERAL FUND 3,143,711.86$              3,141,861.96$              0.45%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 801 WORKERS COMP 50,634.31$                   50,604.22$                   0.45%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 684 EMS CAPITAL RESERVE 232,778.34$                 232,640.00$                 0.45%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 CAPITAL PROJECTS 750,000.00$                 750,000.00$                 1.15%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.00%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.15%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 250,000.00$                 250,000.00$                 1.25%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.30%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 750,000.00$                 750,000.00$                 1.40%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 250,000.00$                 250,000.00$                 1.50%

GRAND TOTAL 13,144,631.17$            13,138,917.81$            0.92%



Beginning Ending
Balance Balance

03/01/18 New Charges Payments Refunds Adjustments Write-Offs 3/31/2018

Bluecross 10,321.28$     8,757.80$        (4,590.72)$      (4,343.19)$         10,145.17$    
Intercept 100.00$          300.00$           (100.00)$          300.00$          
Medicare 138,306.90$  148,832.40$    (37,213.60)$    (54,786.20)$      195,139.50$  
Medicaid (9,900.64)$      38,035.60$      (15,796.54)$    (21,747.85)$      (9,409.43)$     
Other/Commercial 128,483.23$  26,316.20$      (12,708.08)$    (1,179.86)$         140,911.49$  
Patient 156,437.80$  14,056.60$      (10,836.65)$    85.00$             (5,395.00)$         (77,726.76)$   76,620.99$    
Worker's Comp (2,365.91)$      1,619.00$        (1,785.40)$      807.30$           . (1,725.01)$     

TOTAL 421,382.66$  237,917.60$   (83,030.99)$    892.30$           (87,452.10)$      (77,726.76)$  411,982.71$  

March 2018

EMS BILLING 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018
Report as of March 31, 2018



July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar % of
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information 2,428.40$     2,420.00$     (2,428.40)$     2,420.00$           0.15%
Bluecross 7,616.80$     5,319.60$     8,771.40$     10,276.00$   6,772.40$     8,671.00$     8,500.40$       7,433.60$     8,757.80$     2,270.60$      74,389.60$        4.47%
Intercept 200.00$         400.00$         200.00$         -$               100.00$         200.00$          200.00$         300.00$         1,600.00$           0.10%
Medicare 93,981.80$   121,672.00$ 73,260.80$   126,451.20$ 96,014.80$   96,588.20$   106,479.80$   103,205.40$ 148,832.40$ 28,563.20$    995,049.60$      59.82%
Medicaid 29,998.80$   33,361.80$   27,171.80$   34,032.80$   27,524.20$   22,068.00$   27,243.60$     27,893.60$   35,615.60$   8,525.20$      273,435.40$      16.44%
Other/Commercial 26,335.20$   31,967.40$   28,178.40$   20,213.20$   20,077.80$   24,490.40$   24,483.40$     19,517.80$   26,316.20$   (26,451.60)$   195,128.20$      11.73%
Patient 15,784.20$   20,029.80$   11,348.00$   10,776.00$   10,916.20$   15,110.60$   17,456.00$     11,613.80$   14,056.60$   (13,718.40)$   113,372.80$      6.82%
Worker's Comp 872.40$         685.00$         1,614.80$       1,619.00$     3,239.40$      8,030.60$           0.48%

TOTAL 174,789.20$ 213,035.60$ 149,130.40$ 201,949.20$ 161,305.40$ 167,028.20$ 185,978.00$   172,292.60$ 237,917.60$ 0.00$              1,663,426.20$   100.00%

July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar % of
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information 3 3 6 0.29%
Bluecross 9 7 11 12 8 10 10 9 10 86 4.09%
Intercept 2 4 2 0 1 2 2 3 16 0.76%
Medicare 117 151 98 154 121 119 133 126 183 1202 57.21%
Medicaid 39 44 36 44 36 28 35 35 46 343 16.33%
Other/Commercial 36 41 36 25 26 31 33 23 34 285 13.56%
Patient 20 25 14 14 13 18 22 14 17 157 7.47%
Worker's Comp 1 1 0 2 0 2 6 0.29%

TOTAL 224 269 199 251 204 207 237 212 298 0 2101 100.00%

TOTAL REVENUE COLLECTED AS OF 3/31/18 $712,592.40
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AS OF 3/31/18 $360,490.37

Report as of March 31, 2018
July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL CHARGES

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL COUNT

Report as of March 31, 2018



Current 31-60 61-90 91-120 121+ days Totals

Bluecross 6,166.20$       104% 878.00$          15% -$                 0% -$                 0% (1,104.32)$      -19% 5,939.88$            1.44%
Intercept 300.00$          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 300.00$               0.07%
Medicare 57,835.00$     99% 666.80$          1% 801.90$          1% -$                 0% (1,112.96)$      -2% 58,190.74$          14.12%
Medicaid 22,003.66$     87% 675.20$          3% -$                 0% -$                 0% 2,626.44$       10% 25,305.30$          6.14%
Other/Commercial 57,832.17$     78% 8,987.40$       12% 742.40$          1% 118.65$          0% 6,425.54$       9% 74,106.16$          17.99%
Patient 43,084.58$     17% 22,598.17$     9% 27,154.44$     11% 20,419.83$     8% 134,883.61$   54% 248,140.63$       60.23%
Worker's Comp -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                      0.00%

TOTAL 187,221.61$   33,805.57$     28,698.74$     20,538.48$     141,718.31$   411,982.71$       

45% 8% 7% 5% 34% 100% 100.00%

EMS BILLING 
AGING REPORT

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Report as of March 31, 2018



CITY OF AUBURN
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
As of March 31, 2018

. 1902 1905 1910 1913 1914 1915 1917 1922 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931
Winter Community Police Fitness Oak Hill Fire Training Wellness Walmart Healthy Insurance Fire 211

Riverwatch Festival Service Equipment Cemeteries Building Grant Risk/Homeless Androscoggin Reimbursement Vending Prevention Fairview Donations
Fund Balance 7/1/17 972,422.92$    (1,530.30)$              4,380.34$          5,932.53$            27,343.39$           (1,488.84)$           4,582.27$            6,378.18$            1,784.05$              925.21$                (83.88)$               4,791.12$           (566,303.71)$          2,069.13$           

Revenues FY18 66,224.66$      5,691.00$               754.40$             1,600.00$             6,087.00$            960.94$               5,820.00$              672.00$               

Expenditures FY18 116,089.04$    7,266.00$               262.22$             820.00$               5,005.75$            60.94$                 2,604.00$              1,024.36$           984.44$              

Fund Balance 3/31/18 922,558.54$    (3,105.30)$             4,872.52$          5,112.53$            28,943.39$           (1,488.84)$           5,663.52$            7,278.18$            5,000.05$              925.21$                (436.24)$             4,791.12$           (566,303.71)$          1,084.69$          

2003 2005 2006 2007 2008 2010 2013 2014 2019 2020 2025 2030 2032 2033
Byrne Seatbelt Homeland State Drug OUI Speed Law Enforcement Community Safe School/

JAG MDOT PEACE Grant Security Money Grant Grant Training CDBG Cords Parking HEAPP Health (COPS)
Fund Balance 7/1/17 2,808.57$        (300,767.41)$         4,155.42$          2,197.62$            (73,633.75)$          14,432.07$          6,210.37$            8,831.00$            (5,669.72)$            4,323,336.57$      29,316.61$         11,690.86$         (4,994.50)$              (15,906.07)$       

Revenues FY18 -$                 14,466.95$             1,956.17$          4,967.00$            7,916.00$            6,643.42$            11,547.78$            673,650.85$         1,752.66$           115,756.00$       

Expenditures FY18 66,191.84$             2,368.39$          5,000.00$             14,550.59$          7,410.00$            7,159.42$            8,796.78$              975,618.61$         804.70$               138,669.16$       

Fund Balance 3/31/18 2,808.57$        (352,492.30)$         3,743.20$          2,197.62$            (78,633.75)$         4,848.48$            6,716.37$            8,315.00$            (2,918.72)$            4,021,368.81$      30,264.57$         (11,222.30)$       (4,994.50)$              (15,906.07)$       

2037 2038 2040 2041 2044 2045 2046 2048 2050 2051 2052 2053 2054 2055
Bulletproof Community Great Falls Blanche Federal Drug Forest Joint Land Use TD Tree Project Project Nature St Louis EMS Transport Work4ME-

Vests Action Team TV Stevens Money Management Study Days Grant Lifesaver Canopy Conservancy Bells Capital Reserve PAL
Fund Balance 7/1/17 8,478.66$        7,206.21$               45,319.88$        47,037.73$          16,988.54$           4,436.52$            0.57$                   -$                     150.00$                 -$                       975.05$               2,357.75$           331,362.88$           (13,692.41)$       

Revenues FY18 4,531.24$        3,940.00$            15,493.67$           65.91$                   1,277.12$                

Expenditures FY18 24,783.65$        2,489.41$            420.71$                361,060.69$           10,558.45$        

Fund Balance 3/31/18 13,009.90$      7,206.21$               20,536.23$       48,488.32$          32,482.21$           4,436.52$            0.57$                   -$                     215.91$                 (420.71)$               975.05$               2,357.75$           (28,420.69)$            (24,250.86)$       

2056 2057 2058 2059 2060 2201 2500
Lake Auburn ASPCA Barker Mills Distracted My Life EDI Parks &

Neighborhood Grant Greenway Driving My Choice JJAG Grant Recreation
Fund Balance 7/1/17 125.00$           800.00$                  (2,597.43)$        301.00$               -$                      (1,484,407.18)$   191,966.40$        

Revenues FY18 8,680.83$            5,361.50$             171,256.95$        

Expenditures FY18 13,516.83$          5,361.50$             247,428.45$        

Fund Balance 3/31/18 125.00$           800.00$                  (2,597.43)$        (4,535.00)$           -$                      (1,484,407.18)$   115,794.90$        

2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 Total
Tambrands J Enterprises Tambrands II J & A Properties Formed Fiber Mall Downtown Safe Handling Auburn Industrial Auburn Plaza Auburn Plaza II Webster School Bedard Pharm Slapshot LLC Hartt  Transport Special

TIF 4 TIF 5 TIF 6 TIF 7 TIF 8 TIF 9 TIF 10 TIF 11 TIF 12 TIF 13 TIF 14 TIF 16 TIF 17 TIF 18 TIF 19 Revenues
Fund Balance 7/1/17 (8,073.02)$       14,500.44$             (365,270.76)$    2,558.27$            30,486.17$           149,591.94$        (4,529.96)$           183.21$               (350,651.92)$        (37,076.39)$          9,722.38$           360.91$              31,366.79$             47,165.25$        (5.40)$                 3,140,347.13$   

Revenues FY18 523,280.00$    124,379.00$     383,288.00$        815,987.00$        193,476.00$         349,638.00$         460,889.00$       30,116.00$         137,960.00$      30,790.00$        4,186,877.05$   

Expenditures FY18 4,029.83$        460,795.95$        350,950.58$        180,874.00$         82,200.78$           183,843.12$       15,064.43$         138,021.12$      3,442,085.74$   

Fund Balance 3/31/18 511,177.15$    14,500.44$             (240,891.76)$    2,558.27$            30,486.17$           72,083.99$          460,506.46$        183.21$               (338,049.92)$        230,360.83$         286,768.26$       15,412.48$         31,366.79$             47,104.13$        30,784.60$        3,885,138.44$   



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Financial Reports for March, 2018 
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Ingersoll Turf Facility for revenue and expenditures as of March 31, 2018.  
 

INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets as of March 
31, 2018.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of March 2018 the total current assets of Ingersoll Turf Facility were 60,752. This consisted 
of an interfund receivable of $60,752 an increase from February of $11,498.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Ingersoll’s noncurrent assets are the building and equipment that was purchased, less depreciation. The 
total value of the noncurrent assets as of March 31, 2018 was $167,406.  
 
Liabilities: 
Ingersoll had accounts payable of $191 as of March 31, 2018.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 

The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Ingersoll Turf Facility through March 2018 are $147,759. This revenue comes 
from the sponsorships, programs, rental income and batting cages. 
 
The operating expenses for Ingersoll Turf Facility through March 2018 were $134,955. These expenses 
include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 

As of March 2018, Ingersoll has an operating gain of $11,804 compared to February’s of $497.  
 
As of March 31, 2018, Ingersoll has an increase in net assets of $11,804. 
 
The budget to actual reports for revenue and expenditures, show that the revenue for FY18 compared 
to FY 17.  
 



Mar 31 Feb 28, Increase/

2018 2018 (Decrease)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -$                 -$                

Interfund receivables/payables 60,752$     49,254$        11,498        

Accounts receivable -                 -                   -                  

Total current assets 60,752       49,254          11,498        

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Buildings 672,279     672,279        -                  

Equipment 86,625       86,625          -                  

Land improvements 18,584       18,584          -                  

     Less accumulated depreciation (610,082)    (610,082)      -                  

Total noncurrent assets 167,406     167,406        -                  

Total assets 228,158     216,660        11,498        

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 191$          -$                 191$           

Total liabilities 191            -                   191             

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets 167,406$   167,406$      -$                

Unrestricted 60,561$     49,254$        11,307$      

Total net assets 227,967$   216,660$      11,307$      

Statement of Net Assets

Ingersoll Turf Facility

March 31, 2018

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Ingersoll Turf Facility

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities

 March 31, 2018

Ingersoll
Turf

Facility
Operating revenues:

Charges for services 146,759$       

Operating expenses:
Personnel 70,053            
Supplies 12,953            
Utilities 10,311            
Repairs and maintenance 3,939              
Rent -                      
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses 33,048            
Other expenses 4,651              

Total operating expenses 134,955          

Operating  gain (loss) 11,804            

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense -                      

Gain (Loss) before transfer 11,804            

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets 11,804            

Total net assets, July 1 216,163          

Total net assets, March 31, 2018 227,967$       



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU MAR 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU MAR 2017 BUDGET

 

CHARGE FOR SERVICES  

  Sponsorship 17,000$           14,250$                83.82% 15,000$            11,600$                77.33%

  Batting Cages 11,520$           12,221$                106.09% 9,940$              9,625$                  96.83%

  Programs 80,000$           62,604$                78.26% 90,000$            42,602$                47.34%

  Rental Income 103,650$         57,684$                55.65% 100,000$          73,705$                73.71%

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 212,170$         146,759$              69.17% 214,940$          137,532$              63.99%

  

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS -$                     -$                      

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 212,170$         146,759$              69.17% 214,940$          137,532$              63.99%

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

REVENUES - INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY

Through March 31, 2018 compared to March 31, 2017



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2018 EXPENDITURES % OF FY 2017 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU MAR 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU MAR 2017 BUDGET Difference

  Salaries & Benefits 106,624$            70,053$                65.70% 101,899$       69,789$                68.49% 264$               
  Purchased Services 21,110$              8,590$                  40.69% 20,750$         5,437$                  26.20% 3,153$            
  Programs 7,000$                4,047$                  57.81% 5,000$           5,968$                  119.36% (1,921)$           
  Supplies 5,000$                8,906$                  178.12% 6,750$           638$                     9.45% 8,268$            
  Utilities 39,720$              10,311$                25.96% 41,320$         13,368$                32.35% (3,057)$           
  Insurance Premiums 2,431$                -$                      0.00% 2,383$           -$                      0.00% -$                
  Capital Outlay 42,490$              33,048$                77.78% -$               -$                       33,048$          

224,375$            134,955$              60.15% 178,102$       95,200$                53.45% 39,755$          
  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 224,375$            134,955$              60.15% 178,102$       95,200$                53.45% 39,755$         

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

EXPENDITURES - INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY

Through March 31, 2018 compared to March 31, 2017



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Arena Financial Reports for March 31, 2018  
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Norway Savings Bank Arena for revenue and expenditures as of March 31, 2018.  
 
NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets and shows a 
comparison to the previous month, in this case, February 28, 2018.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of March 2018 the total current assets of Norway Savings Bank Arena were ($619,608). 
These consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $95,134, accounts receivable of $80,560, and an 
interfund payable of $795,302. 
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Norway’s noncurrent assets are equipment that was purchased, less depreciation (depreciation is 
posted at year end). The total value of the noncurrent assets as of March 31, 2018 was $394,783.  
 
Liabilities: 
Norway Arena had accounts payable of $14,711 as of March 31, 2018.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Norway Arena through March 2018 are $813,877. This revenue comes from 
the concessions, sign advertisements, pro shop lease, youth programming, shinny hockey, public skating 
and ice rentals. 
 
The operating expenses for Norway Arena through March 2018 were $558,509. These expenses include 
personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, rent, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 
At the end of March 2018, there was an operating gain of $255,368. 
 
As of March 2018, Norway Arena has a overall loss of $124,495, after the debt service (rent) was 
deducted from the operating gain, compared to the February 2018 operating loss of $81,665 an increase 
in the net loss for the fiscal year of $42,830. 
 
As of March 31, 2018, Norway Arena has a decrease in net assets of $124,495. 
 



March 31, February 28, Increase/

2018 2018 (Decrease)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 95,134$           95,175$                  (41)$                

Interfund receivables (795,302)$        (845,646)$              50,344$          

Prepaid Rent -$                     -$                            -$                     

Accounts receivable 80,560             159,029                  (78,469)$         

Total current assets (619,608)          (591,442)                (28,166)           

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Buildings 58,223             58,223                    -                       

Equipment 514,999           514,999                  -                       

Land improvements -                       -                              -                       

     Less accumulated depreciation (178,439)          (178,439)                -                       

Total noncurrent assets 394,783           394,783                  -                       

Total assets (224,825)          (196,659)                (28,166)           

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 14,711$           47$                         14,664$          

Net pension liability 100,398           100,398                  -                       

Total liabilities 115,109           100,445                  14,664             

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets 394,783$         394,783$                -$                     

Unrestricted (734,717)$        (691,887)$              (42,830)$         

Total net assets (339,934)$        (297,104)$              (42,830)$         

Statement of Net Assets

Norway Savings Bank Arena

March 31, 2018

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Norway Savings Bank Arena

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities

 March 31, 2018

Norway
Savings
Arena

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 813,877$       

Operating expenses:
Personnel 286,962          
Supplies 50,788            
Utilities 156,278          
Repairs and maintenance 25,467            
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses 12,585            
Other expenses 26,429            

Total operating expenses 558,509          

Operating  gain (loss) 255,368          

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Debt Service (Rent) (379,863)        
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense (379,863)        

Gain (Loss) before transfer (124,495)        

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets (124,495)        

Total net assets, July 1 (215,439)        

Total net assets, March 31, 2018 (339,934)$      



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU MAR 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU MAR 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

  

CHARGE FOR SERVICES   

  Concssions 18,000$            6,485$                  36.03% 18,000$            4,870$                  27.06% 1,615$        
  Vending Machines -$                 8,253$                    8,253$        
  Skate Rentals -$                 5,328$                    5,328$        
  Sponsorships 275,000$          159,818$              58.12% 230,000$          211,299$              91.87% (51,481)$    
  Pro Shop 8,500$              3,517$                  41.38% 8,500$              5,429$                  63.87% (1,912)$      
  Programs 31,000$            18,212$                58.75% 31,000$            0.00% 18,212$      
  Rental Income 705,250$          544,873$              77.26% 672,250$          618,038$              91.94% (73,165)$    
  Camps/Clinics 50,000$            27,838$                55.68% 50,000$            42,185$                (14,347)$    
  Tournaments 50,000$            39,553$                79.11% 50,000$            36,577$                73.15% 2,976$        

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,137,750$       813,877$              71.53% 1,059,750$       918,398$              86.66% (104,521)$  

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

REVENUES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through March 31, 2018 compared to March 31, 2017



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2017 EXPENDITURES % OF FY 2016 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU MAR 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU MAR 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

 

 

  Salaries & Benefits 344,000$            286,962$              83.42% 311,000$           268,748$              86.41% 18,214$     
  Purchased Services 71,656$              51,896$                72.42% 87,306$             32,819$                37.59% 19,077$     
  Supplies 37,100$              50,788$                136.89% 37,150$             63,896$                171.99% (13,108)$    
  Utilities 225,150$            156,278$              69.41% 199,800$           188,681$              94.43% (32,403)$    
  Capital Outlay 103,500$            12,585$                12.16% 57,000$             20,368$                35.73% (7,783)$      
  Rent 507,000$            379,863$              74.92% 507,000$           379,863$              74.92% -$            

1,288,406$         938,372$              72.83% 1,199,256$        954,375$              79.58% (16,003)$    

  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,288,406$         938,372$              72.83% 1,199,256$        954,375$              79.58% (16,003)$    

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

EXPENDITURES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through March 31, 2018 compared to March 31, 2017



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   April 23, 2018 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 4-23-2018
	1  Info sheet senior parking
	1a  Senior parking
	2  Info sheet 2018 - 2019 CDBG  HOME Budget discussions 4.23.18
	2a  2018-2019 Proposed CDBG.HOME Budget  Action Plan Packet
	3  Info Sheet to Council OT Fire EMS working group- 2018
	3a  OT Working Group - Executive Summary 1
	3b  FIRE WG OVERTIME FINAL PRESENTATION revised (004))
	OVERTIME AND EMS REVIEW WORKING GROUP
	OVERTIME AND EMS REVIEW WORKING GROUP
	OVERTIME AND EMS�WORKING GROUP
	Meeting March 14, 2018
	Meeting March 14, 2018
	HISTORICAL OVERTIME DATA
	VACATION REPLACEMENT OVERTIME
	THE EFFECT OF THE MOST RECENT HIRING (4 FFs)�ON OT EXPENSES
	(ST) SICK REPLACEMENT OVERTIME
	Slide Number 10
	Meeting March 21, 2018
	EMERGENCY SERVICES SCHEDULING
	42 HOUR SCHEDULE X 4 PLATOONS
	56 HOUR SCHEDULE X 3 PLATOONS
	Scheduling Summary
	EMS BUDGET REVIEW
	Meeting March 28, 2018
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	RECOMMENDATIONS

	3c  Fire OT and EMS Work Group Presentation 3-13-18
	4  Info Sheet Election Clerk Appointments
	4a  title21-Asec503
	4b  Auburn Nomin Dems Election Clerks 2018-03-21
	4c  Order 36-04232018 Election Clerk Appointments
	5  Minutes 4-2-2018
	6  Minutes 4-10-2018
	7  Info sheet 2018 - 2019 CDBG  HOME Budget Public Hearing 4.23.18
	7a  2018-2019 Proposed CDBG.HOME Budget  Action Plan Packet
	8  Info Sheet - board and committee appointments
	8a  Applicant Spreadsheet
	8b  VACANCIE1
	8c  Board of Assessment Review
	8d  Order 37-04232018-02262018 Board of Assessment Appt
	9  CAC App
	Auburn App p1
	Auburn App p2
	Resume 2018 Auburn

	9a  Order 38-04232018 CAC Appt
	10  Conservation Commission Apps
	10a  Order 39-04232018-02262018 Conservation Commission
	11  Parks & Rec
	11a  Order 40-04232018-02262018 P&R Advisory Board
	12a  Planning Board App
	12b  Planning Board App
	12c  Order 41-04232018 Planning Board Appt
	13  Final March 2018 Finance Report
	FY18 March Finance Rpt.pdf
	BS
	rev
	exp
	inv summary

	EMS Billing breakdown fy 18 March.pdf
	March 2018 Summary
	March 2018
	March aging

	special revenue accounts as of 033118.pdf
	2018

	Ingersoll Turf Facility Monthly Report-March 2018.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures

	NSB Monthly Report March 2018.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures


	14  Executive Session Info Sheet 2018



